
 
Agenda No. 2012–04 February 27, 2012 Page 1 of 3 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO. 2012–04 

REGULAR MEETING February 27, 2012 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
I 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 
2. INVOCATION 
 
 
3. FLAG SALUTATION 
 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS, oral communications to Council on any item not up for Public 

Hearing.  Testimony is limited to five (5) minutes.  Any person wishing to speak needs to 
complete the register located in the hallway.  Normal standards of decorum and courtesy 
should be observed by all speakers.  Remarks should be directed to the City Council as 
a body rather than to any particular Council Member or member of the staff.  In 
consideration of others, kindly silence all cell phone, electronic and messaging devices.  

 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk (*).  
Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council Member so 
requests.  In the event of such a request, the item is returned to the General Agenda). 

 
 
6. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 

*a) Regular Meeting Minutes of November 21, 2011. 
 

*b) Regular Meeting Minutes of December 5, 2011. 
 
 
7. SPECIAL ORDERS 
 

a) The Fairbanks City Council will convene as a Board of Adjustment in the 
matter of the below-stated administrative decision of the Fairbanks North 
Star Borough Planning Commission: 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 1 of 377



 
Agenda No. 2012–04 February 27, 2012 Page 2 of 3 

 A request by Wayne Sandstrom regarding a Bed and Breakfast 
Residence.  

*NOTE: The board shall not hear arguments nor take additional 
testimony or other evidence.  Only the material contained in 
the appeal packet shall be considered.  

 
b) VACATION OF PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY (VA 006-12 Wilbur St) ─ 

Request by 3-Tier Alaska on Behalf of Fairbanks Montessori Association, 
Inc., to vacate the Westerly 50 foot wide portion of Wilbur Street Adjacent 
to the Eastern Boundary of Lot 1, Tract H, ASLS 80-64, and add the 0.37 
acre vacated area to create one new lot of 1.37 acres, within Sec 15, T1S 
R1W, FM (located on 30th Avenue and Wilbur Street).   

 
 
8. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 Ordinance No. 5875 – An Ordinance Amending Chapter 86 Vehicles for 
Hire Chauffeur Requirements.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.  SECOND 
READING AND PUBLIC HEARING.   

 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 a) Resolution No. 4513 – A Resolution Amending the City Schedule of Fees 
and Charges for Services, Adjusting Costs to Conduct Criminal History 
Checks for Chauffeurs Applicants.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.   

 
*b) Resolution No. 4514 – A Resolution Urging the Alaska Legislature to 

Refrain from Enacting any Legislation that Would Increase the State’s 
Pension Liability.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.   

 
*c) Ordinance No. 5876 – An Ordinance Amend Chapter 14, 46, and 78, to 

Repeal, Amend, and Clarify Certain Offenses.  Introduced by Mayor 
Cleworth.   

 
*d) Ordinance No. 5877 – An Ordinance Authorizing a Land Exchange 

Between the Greater Fairbanks Community Hospital Foundation and the 
City of Fairbanks to Facilitate Vacation of 11th Avenue and to Provide 
Parking Adjacent to Fire Station Headquarters.  Introduced by Mayor 
Cleworth. 

 
  

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 2 of 377



 
Agenda No. 2012–04 February 27, 2012 Page 3 of 3 

11. DISCUSSION ITEMS (INFORMATION AND REPORT)  
 

a) Committee Reports. 
 
b) Fairbanks North Star Borough Dispatch Contracts. 

 
 
12. COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 

*a) Permanent Fund Review Board Meeting Minutes of November 2, 2011. 
 

*b) Chena Riverfront Commission Meeting Minutes of December 5, 2011.   
 

*c) Chena Riverfront Commission Meeting Minutes of December 15, 2011.   
 

*d) Public Safety Commission Meeting Minutes of January 10, 2012.   
 

*e) Reappointment to the Permanent Fund Review Board.   
 
 
13. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
14. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 
15. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
 
16. EXECUTIVE SESSION – IBEW Labor Negotiations 
 
 
17. ADJOURNMENT 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 3 of 377



 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES, NOVEMBER 21, 2011 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 
 
The City Council convened at 7:00 p.m. on the above date, following an annual presentation by 
the Community Service Patrol, to conduct a Regular Meeting of the Fairbanks City Council at 
the City Council Chambers, 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska, with Mayor Jerry Cleworth 
presiding and with the following Council Members in attendance: 
 
Council Members Present: Vivian Stiver, Seat A 

Chad Roberts, Seat B 
Bernard Gatewood, Seat C 
Jim Matherly, Seat D 
Lloyd Hilling, Seat E 
John Eberhart, Seat F 
 

Absent: None 
 

Also Present: Pat Cole, Chief of Staff 
Warren Cummings, Fire Chief 
Dave Burglin, Deputy City Attorney 
Janey Hovenden, City Clerk 
Ryan Rickels, IT Director 
Tony C. Shumate, Director Personnel/Purchasing/RM 
Laren Zager, Police Chief 
Ernie Misewicz, City Fire Marshal 
Margarita Bell, Grants Administrator 

 
INVOCATION 
 
The Invocation was given by City Clerk Janey Hovenden. 
 
FLAG SALUTATION 
 
Mayor Cleworth led the Flag Salutation. 
 
Mayor Cleworth asked Chief Zager and Eric Jewkes to come forward. 
 
Police Chief Zager publicly recognized Eric Jewkes for his outstanding work in organizing and 
managing FPD’s Downtown Task Force, a two-year program which was a great success.  He 
announced that, as of December 1, 2011, Mr. Jewkes would be promoted from Sergeant to 
Lieutenant.   
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 4 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT November 21, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 13 

CITIZEN’S COMMENTS 
 
Victor Buberge, PO Box 58192, Fairbanks – Mr. Buberge apologized to the radio audience for 
his comments the week prior.  He spoke to the need for public toilets in the downtown area and 
read excerpts from a tourism guide on the negative impacts to the tourism industry in areas with 
poor or inadequate public toilet facilities.  He offered solutions to offset the cost should the City 
choose to provide such facilities.   
 
Mr. Hilling asked Mr. Buberge how many public toilets should be available downtown. 
 
Mr. Buberge replied that he would recommend at least three.   
 
Frank Turney, 201 7th Avenue, Fairbanks – Mr. Turney thanked the City Council for passing the 
resolution on hemp.  He commented on Mr. Buberge’s research on public facilities and spoke to 
the need for restrooms in the core downtown area.  He spoke in favor of the proposed changes to 
City code by Mayor Cleworth regarding penalties for urinating in public.   
 
David Lerman, 126 2nd Avenue, #15, Fairbanks – Mr. Lerman congratulated Mr. Hilling and 
Mr. Turney on the approval of the hemp resolution.  He again advocated for a renovation task 
force in the City of Fairbanks, stating that renovation decreases crime.  He stated that he intends 
to run for City Council again in 2012 and anticipates voter numbers to increase.  He spoke also 
to forming a DUI Task Force.   
 
Mr. Gatewood asked Mr. Lerman if there was a drug problem at his apartment complex after the 
renovation was completed.   
 
Mr. Lerman replied that there was not.   
 
Marylee Bates, 1290 Saint Anton Drive, Fairbanks – Ms. Bates, Program Director for Fairbanks 
Youth Advocates, briefly recapped her public testimony regarding the Community Development 
Block Grant from the previous City Council Meeting.  She provided an update on issues of 
concern to the Council:  liability to the City, sustainability of the program and agency credibility.  
She spoke to the terms of the five-year plan and briefly outlined the agency’s mission statement 
and business proposal.  Ms. Bates stated that, although the Youth Advocates would be actively 
involved in the project, it would be operated as a program of the Fairbanks Rescue Mission.  She 
added that Mr. Gaskins, Executive Director of the Fairbanks Rescue Mission, and the mission’s 
board would oversee the project and all financial decisions.   
 
Rodney Gaskins, 2033 Sara Lynn Road, Fairbanks – Mr. Gaskins introduced himself and spoke 
in support of the proposal to allow Fairbanks Rescue Mission to serve as a guarantor for the 
Fairbanks Youth Advocates. 
 
Mr. Hilling asked if the working relationship between the two organizations would allow for 
one facility to offer shelter in the event of an overflow. 
 
Mr. Gaskins replied that the homeless population at the Fairbanks Rescue Mission has been 
growing younger each year and that he would like to direct those individuals to the Youth 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 5 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT November 21, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 13 

Advocates facility, geared specifically towards young people.  He explained that the Fairbanks 
Rescue Mission does not house youth under the age of eighteen, but that in emergency situations 
they may house runaways for one night until they can be turned over to OCS or the Presbyterian 
Hospitality House.  He added that he sees the proposed facility as an investment opportunity for 
the rescue mission.   
 
Mr. Hilling asked how the new support from the Fairbanks Rescue Mission would boost the 
confidence of the City Council in the long-term sustainability of the Youth Advocates Program.   
 
Ms. Bates explained the partnership between the two organizations.  She added that the support 
from an experienced and successful organization such as the Fairbanks Rescue Mission bodes 
well for the Youth Advocates.   
 
Mr. Matherly thanked Ms. Bates for returning and commended Mr. Gaskins for his work as 
Director of the Fairbanks Rescue Mission.  He asked if the rescue mission has ever been 
approached by other organizations soliciting similar support and, if so, what it was that attracted 
him to support this project. 
 
Mr. Gaskins responded that he has never been approached with such a request.  He spoke to 
Ms. Bates’ passion and commitment to the Youth Advocates Program.   
 
Ms. Stiver asked if the boards of both organizations were in agreement on the terms of 
partnership and if they understood the financial liability.  She inquired about the business 
structure of the collaboration between the Fairbanks Youth Advocates and the Fairbanks Rescue 
Mission.   
 
Mr. Gaskins clarified that the business relationship between the two organizations would not be a 
partnership; rather, the Fairbanks Rescue Mission would “umbrella” the Fairbanks Youth 
Advocates as a program.   
 
Mr. Eberhart expressed his confusion regarding Fairbanks Rescue Mission’s role in the project.  
He stated that it could be because he was not present at the last City Council meeting.   
 
Ms. Bates explained that the sale of the property to Clearwater Ministries is being held up due to 
some paperwork issues at the title company, but that the sale should be finalized within a few 
weeks.  She stated that the business plan Mr. Eberhart was looking at was outdated because 
things had changed since the last regular Council meeting.  She explained to Mr. Eberhart that 
the Council had asked that the Youth Advocates seek a guarantor for the CDBG, thus initiating 
the support from the Fairbanks Rescue Mission.   
 
Mr. Eberhart asked who would be the applicant for the CDBG. 
 
Ms. Bates replied that, because the grant would be for the renovation of the property, the 
applicant would be Clearwater Ministries.   
 
Mr. Eberhart asked if there was a stipulation on minimum facility occupancy in order to qualify 
for the CDBG.   

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 6 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT November 21, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 13 

Ms. Bates stated that the occupancy of the renovated facility would be decided by the state.   
 
Mr. Eberhart asked if the estimated cost of renovation was still $600,000.   
 
Ms. Bates confirmed the estimate, but clarified that the number is high because of certain 
stipulations of the grant itself.   
 
Mr. Eberhart asked if Clearwater Ministries would apply for the entire $750,000 available in 
the CDBG.   
 
Ms. Bates replied that Resolution No. 4493 includes the administrative costs to the City and 
construction costs.  She explained that costs are reimbursed to the applicant as phases are 
completed.  She clarified that the $600,000 is a rough guess by contractors until a design 
estimate is completed and a formal construction plan is proposed.   
 
Mr. Eberhart asked Mr. Gaskins if the Fairbanks Rescue Mission was willing to accept this 
type of liability. 
 
Mr. Gaskins replied in the affirmative. 
 
Mr. Eberhart spoke to future funding sources and asked about long-term funding for Fairbanks 
Youth Advocates.   
 
Ms. Bates indicated that specific details will still have to be worked out for long-term funding, 
but that much of it will come from fundraising and grants.   
 
Mr. Gaskins added that, as the Executive Director of the Fairbanks Rescue Mission and Project 
Manager, it is his job to ensure sustainability.  He spoke to various grants that may be available 
and to soliciting donations from the community.   
 
Mr. Gatewood thanked Mr. Gaskins and Ms. Bates for coming and applauded the collaboration 
between the two organizations. He asked what role Clearwater Ministries would have in the 
project.   
 
Ms. Bates explained that Clearwater Ministries is the “umbrella” for Fairbanks Youth Advocates.  
She indicated that the entire project will be turned over to the Fairbanks Rescue Mission and the 
Youth Advocates will provide support to the mission throughout the project.  She clarified that 
Clearwater Ministries will maintain ownership of the building.   
 
Ms. Stiver asked how the $250,000 grant match would be met.   
 
Ms. Bates clarified that the match is 25% so the exact dollar amount is still unknown.  She 
indicated that most of the match will be made in-kind by the value of the building itself; she 
stated that other things, such as materials, can also be used towards the match.   
 
Mr. Roberts thanked Mr. Gaskins and Mr. Bates for coming.  He asked what could trigger the 
grant funding to be refunded and what time stipulations would be involved.  He also inquired as 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 7 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT November 21, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 13 

to the transferability of the CDBG grant moneys to the Fairbanks Rescue Mission should the 
Youth Advocates Program fail.   
 
Ms. Bates suggested that since the target population for the two facilities is so different, the grant 
dollars could not be transferrable.   
 
Mr. Gaskins stated that the Fairbanks Rescue Mission has no intention of changing its mission to 
serve the youth of the community.  He shared his passion and commitment to the project.   
 
Mr. Eberhart asked Ms. Bates if the property was currently in her name.  He asked for 
clarification on the date of purchase and the purchase price. 
 
Ms Bates confirmed that the property is currently in her name and the purchase was made in 
May, 2011.  She stated that her purchase price was $143,900, although the value of the property 
was estimated at $179,000.    
 
Ms. Stiver clarified with Ms Bates the property address as 138 10th Avenue.   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mr. Gatewood, seconded by Mr. Matherly, moved to APPROVE the Agenda and Consent 
Agenda. 
 
Mr. Gatewood, pulled Ordinance No. 5865 from the Consent Agenda.   
 

Mayor Cleworth called for objection and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 
 
City Clerk Hovenden read the Consent Agenda into the record. 
 
APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
a) Regular Meeting Minutes of August 22, 2011. 
 

PASSED and APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
b) Regular Meeting Minutes of September 12, 2011. 
 

PASSED and APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 

SPECIAL ORDERS 
 

The Fairbanks City Council, sitting as a Committee of the Whole, heard interested 
citizens concerned with the below-referenced Appeal of Denied Application for new 
Chauffeur License.   

 
   Applicant: Ronnie Scott Dubs 
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 8 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT November 21, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 13 

Mr. Roberts, seconded by Mr. Gatewood, moved to GRANT Appeal of Denied Application. 
 
Mayor Cleworth called for Public Testimony. 
 
Ronnie Dubs, 1456 Eielson Street, #4, Fairbanks – Mr. Dubs explained that the felony 
preventing him from obtaining his Chauffeur License occurred more than nine years ago, but 
since the City code tracks only the date of conviction, he is not eligible.  He stated that he was 
convicted of the felony seven years and eight months ago.  He asked that the Council grant his 
application because he has had a clean record since that time.  Mr. Dubs stated that he has a 
Class A commercial driver’s license and a HAZMAT endorsement.   
 
Mr. Hilling asked Mr. Dubs if he has had any driving infractions since the time of the felony. 
 
Mr. Dubs provided a summary and brief explanation of his traffic violations. 
 
Ms. Stiver asked for the meaning of “SR 22” on Mr. Dubs’ driving record. 
 
Mr. Dubs explained that “SR 22” indicates when an insurance company notifies the state that an 
insurance policy has been reinstated.  He stated that there is a monthly fee for that type of 
monitoring and it is required when an individual has too many traffic infractions on their record.  
He explained that he is no longer required to have such monitoring.   
 
Ms. Stiver asked Mr. Dubs to confirm the date of arrest and conviction.   
 
Mr. Dubs answered that the felony occurred 9 ½ years ago, the arrest took place 8 ½ years ago, 
and the conviction date was 7 years and 8 months ago.  
 
Mr. Matherly asked if Mr. Dubs thought the Council should overlook the numerous traffic 
infractions on his record. 
 
Mr. Dubs acknowledged the large number of infractions, but indicated that there were no 
significant cases, such as a DUI.   
 
Mr. Roberts spoke to the recent modifications to the FGC pertaining to Chauffeurs.  He asked 
Mr. Dubs to speak to three conditions that need to be met by an applicant before the Council will 
grant an appeal:  significant effort at rehabilitation; completion of court-ordered treatment or 
probation, if applicable; and positive contribution to society.   
 
Mr. Dubs stated that he had successfully completed his probation and had fulfilled all court 
orders.  He spoke to his own character and provided a brief job history.  
 
Mr. Gatewood thanked Mr. Dubs for coming.  He spoke to the large number of infractions on 
Mr. Dubs’ record and questioned his regard for law enforcement.   
 
Mr. Dubs spoke to the circumstances surrounding some of the infractions and commented that he 
had just “fallen on rough times.” 
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 9 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT November 21, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 13 

Mr. Hilling inquired about the “failure to appear” statements on Mr. Dubs’ record. 
 
Mr. Dubs explained that “failure to appear” is the term also used when an individual fails to pay 
for a traffic citation.  He added that he simply could not afford to pay for his traffic infractions in 
full.    
 
Frank Turney spoke in support of granting the denied application.   
 
Mr. Eberhart asked Mr. Burglin if it was appropriate for the Council to discuss traffic 
infractions that are not part of the reason for denial.    
 
Mr. Burglin advised that the Council may consider infractions and tickets if it speaks to the 
rehabilitation condition for appeal in the FGC. 
 
Mr. Eberhart spoke to the recent modifications to the Chauffeur code and cautioned the fellow 
Council Members on being too relaxed in their consideration of appeals.   
 
Ms. Stiver asked for the reason for denial of Mr. Dubs’ application.  She spoke to the relevance 
of an individual’s driving record, stating that it can be very telling in regards to their respect for 
law enforcement. 
 
City Clerk Hovenden, in response to Ms. Stiver’s question, explained that the reason for denial 
was the conviction of a drug-related felony within the 8-year look back period.    
 
Mr. Matherly stated that he was unsure of his position on the appeal.  He spoke to the 
recentness of Mr. Dubs’ traffic infractions and also the stringent requirements to obtain a CDL.  
He added that appeals are not often cut and dried.   
 
Mr. Gatewood spoke to the consistency of Mr. Dubs’ traffic violations. 
 
Ms. Stiver expressed concern with Mr. Dubs’ driving record and disregard for the law, stating 
that a CDL is required for operating a vehicle but a Chauffeur License is required for ensuring 
the safety of the public.   
 
Mr. Roberts spoke in favor of sticking to the timelines set forth in the recent ordinance 
regarding chauffeurs and stated his intent to deny the appeal.   
 
Mr. Eberhart again expressed concern about the leniency of the Council in regard to chauffeur 
appeals.  He stated that he would not support the appeal. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO GRANT APPEAL, AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:   None  
NAYS:  Eberhart, Gatewood, Stiver, Hilling, Matherly, Roberts 
Mayor Cleworth declared the MOTION FAILED. 

 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 10 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT November 21, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 8 of 13 

MAYOR’S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
Mayor Cleworth thanked the Council for attending the various budget meetings throughout the 
week.  He explained the Council’s options for amending the budget ordinance before the next 
regular City Council Meeting.  He spoke to the state funding set aside for street improvements in 
the Graehl Subdivision area.  He complimented the Finance Department on receiving a 
Certificate of Excellence in financial reporting for the year 2010.  Mayor Cleworth spoke to 
Resolution No. 4493.  He informed the Council that if both the original and the hand-carried 
amended versions fail, that a motion to reconsider can be made that would allow for 
authorization for the City to apply for the CDBG to fund apparatus for the Fairbanks Fire 
Department.   
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 Resolution No. 4493 – A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to Participate in 

the FFY2011 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program.  Introduced by 
Mayor Cleworth.  POSTPONED from the Regular Meeting of November 14, 2011.   

 
(Motion to APPROVE on the floor from the November 14, 2011 City Council Meeting) 
 
Mr. Gatewood requested a Staff Report. 
 
Pat Cole provided a brief report on the reduced liability to the City with the involvement of the 
Fairbanks Rescue Mission and the changes in the language of the amended version that will help 
protect the City in the event that the Youth Advocates Program fails.   
 
Mr. Hilling asked if there was going to be a signed statement by the Fairbanks Rescue Mission 
ensuring their acceptance of liability for the project.   
 
Pat Cole replied that that statement will not come until after application for the CDBG is 
authorized.  He briefly explained the grant process and the various documents that will be signed 
upon being awarded the grant.   
 
Ms. Stiver inquired about minimums for the grant match. She spoke to the current value of the 
property and expressed concerns for project failure and the liability to the City to repay the grant. 
 
Margarita Bell stated that the total project cost, including the match, could be up to 1 million 
dollars.  She explained that if the project fails, the liability would be only for the current market 
value of the property upon its sale, not the total dollar amount of the grant.   
 
Mr. Gatewood referred to Ms. Bates testimony and asked if the five-year stipulation on the 
CDBG was a continuous time period or if a break was allowable.   
 
Ms. Bell stated that she could see the grantors accepting a short break (i.e. six months or less) as 
long as the purpose for the program does not change.  She added that it is likely that a three-year 
suspension of the project would be unacceptable.    
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 11 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT November 21, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 9 of 13 

Mr. Eberhart expressed concern and confusion with the numerous variables surrounding the 
project.  He asked for clarification on whom would be the applicant for the grant and what the 
deadline for application would be.   
 
Ms. Bell answered that the City of Fairbanks would be the applicant, in partnership with 
Clearwater Ministries.  She stated that the ownership of the property is projected to be 
transferred to Clearwater Ministries by December 6, 2011.  She added that the application 
deadline for the CDBG is December 2, 2011.   
 
Mayor Cleworth clarified that Resolution No. 4493 was only for the authorization to apply for 
the CDBG and that there would be opportunities in the future to further discuss the grant. 
 
Mr. Roberts, seconded by Mr. Gatewood, moved to SUBSTITUTE Resolution No. 4493, As 
Amended (2) for Resolution No. 4493.   
 
Mr. Roberts commented that the youth shelter was a worthy project and commended City staff 
and both organizations involved for their work in the project planning.   
 
Mr. Gatewood remarked that, while there were still many variables in the project plan, both 
organizations have done a great job at putting the Council at ease with issues of liability.  He 
commented on the remarkable “fit” between the Fairbanks Rescue Mission and the Youth 
Advocates.  He spoke with conviction in favor of Resolution No. 4493, as Amended (2).   
 
Mr. Matherly also commended Mr. Gaskins and the Fairbanks Rescue Mission for taking on the 
project.  He spoke to the need for a youth shelter in Fairbanks and stated his support for 
Resolution No. 4493, as Amended (2).   
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN, ON THE MOTION TO SUBSTITUTE RESOLUTION 
NO. 4493, AS AMENDED (2), AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Matherly, Hilling, Roberts, Stiver, Gatewood, Eberhart 
NAYS: None 
Mayor Cleworth declared the MOTION CARRIED. 

 
Ms. Stiver thanked Ms. Bates for understanding the Council’s concern with liability to the City 
and for making the effort to find financial support from another organization.   
 
Mr. Eberhart stated that he has had some concerns with the project, but that the involvement of 
the Fairbanks Rescue Mission has helped alleviate much of his worry.  He expressed his support 
for the project, but commented on its complexity due to the grant requirements. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN, ON THE MOTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 
NO. 4493, AS AMENDED (2), AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Gatewood, Roberts, Eberhart, Matherly, Stiver, Hilling 
NAYS: None 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 12 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT November 21, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 10 of 13 

Mayor Cleworth declared the MOTION CARRIED and 
RESOLUTION NO. 4493, as Amended (2), APPROVED. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
a) Resolution No. 4498 – A Resolution to Apply for and Accept Funding from the National 

Endowment for the Humanities for the Sustaining Cultural Heritage Collections Grant.  
Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.   
 

 PASSED and APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 

b) Resolution No. 4499 – A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to Accept Funds 
from the Alaska Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management Under the 
FFY2011 Citizen Corps Program.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.   
 
  PASSED and APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 

c) Resolution No. 4500 – A Resolution to Apply for and Accept Funding from the Alaska 
Department of Transportation & Public Facilities for the Safe Routes to School Grant.  
Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.   
 
  PASSED and APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 

d) Resolution No. 4501 – A Resolution Setting Forth the Method by which the Police 
Station Bonds will be Legally Defeased, and Authorizing the Mayor to Act.  Introduced 
by Mayor Cleworth.   
 
  PASSED and APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 

e) Ordinance No. 5865 – An Ordinance Adopting the 2012 Operating and Capital Budgets.  
Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.  
 

Mr. Gatewood, seconded by Mr. Roberts, moved to ADVANCE Ordinance No. 5865 to the 
Regular Meeting of December 12, 2011.   
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN, ON THE MOTION TO ADVANCE ORDINANCE 
NO. 5865 TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 12, 2011, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Stiver, Matherly, Gatewood, Hilling, Eberhart, Roberts 
NAYS: None 
Mayor Cleworth declared the MOTION CARRIED. 

 
f) Ordinance No. 5866 – An Ordinance to Amend Fairbanks General Code by Enacting 

FGC Section 1-20, Code of Ethics.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.   
 
  ADVANCED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 13 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT November 21, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 11 of 13 

g) Ordinance No. 5867 – An Ordinance to Repeal Chapter 74, Article VI, of the Fairbanks 
General Code, Occupational Privilege Tax.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.   

  
  ADVANCED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 

  
h) Ordinance No. 5868 – An Ordinance to Repeal Chapter 26, Article V, Section 26-201 of 

the Fairbanks General Code, Residential Emergency Services Tax.  Introduced by Mayor 
Cleworth.   

 
  ADVANCED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
 Committee Reports 
 
FMATS Policy Committee – Mr. Roberts provided a brief report on the last meeting. 
 
Public Safety Commission – Mr. Eberhart gave a brief report on the November 8, 2011 
meeting.  He commented on the uncertain future of the Public Safety Commission.   
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Matherly expressed appreciation for everyone’s participation in the meeting.  He cautioned 
on the hazards of the cold weather.   
 
Mr. Hilling addressed the issue of public restrooms in the downtown area.  He assured 
Mr. Turney, Mr. Buberge and Mr. Lerman that he would look into it.  He commended the 
Finance Department on receipt of the Certificate of Excellence.  He spoke to the CDBG and his 
relief that the Youth Advocates had found a guarantor.   
 
Mr. Eberhart spoke to the efforts of the Community Service Patrol (CSP).  He announced that 
“Housing First” will be holding its ceremonial opening on December 15, 2011 and wondered 
what impact that would have on the CSP.  He commented that in his eight years as a City 
Council Member, this budget season has gone smoother than ever before.  He commended City 
staff, particularly the Finance Department, for their work in the 2012 budget preparation.  
Mr. Eberhart asked to be excused for the Regular Meeting of December 5, 2011.  He wished 
everyone a Happy Thanksgiving.   
 

Mayor Cleworth called for objection regarding Mr. Eberhart’s request to be 
excused on December 5, 2011 and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 

 
Mr. Gatewood apologized to Mr. Hilling and went on to clarify the intent of his comments in 
the previous meeting regarding the CDBG, when he stated that the Council would have another 
opportunity to discuss the grant if and when the funds were awarded.  He stated that ”open 
debate is the greatest asset of civilization” and that he respects all the opinions expressed by his 
fellow Council Members.  He commented on the good business relationship between the 
Fairbanks Rescue Mission and the Youth Advocates.   

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 14 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT November 21, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 12 of 13 

 
Mr. Roberts thanked the Council for being very thoughtful and thorough in their decisions.  He 
commended Lieutenant Jewkes for his service to the City of Fairbanks.  He expressed 
gratefulness for his health and his family, considering there are many who are less fortunate.   
 
Ms. Stiver announced that the Bed Tax Discretionary Fund Presentation Meetings would be held 
December 13 & 14, 2011, with 31 applicants in the running.  She stated that the distribution 
meeting has been tentatively scheduled for December 23, 2011 at noon.  She congratulated 
Lieutenant Jewkes on the success of the Downtown Task Force and his promotion.  She spoke to 
the CDBG and asked what party would be financially responsible if the project was a failure.  
Ms. Stiver wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving.   
 
Ms. Bell offered to provide more information to Ms. Stiver at a later date.   
 
Mayor Cleworth replied that the property would be used as collateral, and any outstanding debt 
would be the responsibility of the guarantor, Fairbanks Rescue Mission.  He commented that this 
is the first time the City has ever gone after a CDBG on behalf of another entity and that it is a 
good learning experience for all those involved.  He stated the need to have stipulations in place 
that would prohibit the City from applying for grants in the future on behalf of some outside 
organization.   
 
Mr. Roberts asked to be excused from the meeting for personal reasons.   
 
Mayor Cleworth excused Mr. Roberts.   
 
Mr. Hilling, seconded by Mr. Matherly, moved to go into Executive Session for the purpose of 
discussing Labor Negotiations for FFA, PSEA, IBEW and AFL-CIO. 
 

Mayor Cleworth called for objection and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 
 
Mayor Cleworth called for a five minute recess. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 Labor Contract Negotiations – FFA, PSEA, IBEW and AFL-CIO 
 
The City Council met in Executive Session to discuss labor negotiations.  Direction was given to 
staff and no action was taken.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Ms. Stiver, seconded by Mr. Gatewood, moved to ADJOURN the meeting. 
 

Mayor Cleworth called for objection and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 15 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT November 21, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 13 of 13 

Mayor Cleworth declared the Meeting adjourned at 10:00 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JERRY CLEWORTH, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
JANEY HOVENDEN, CMC, CITY CLERK 
 
Transcribed by:  DS 
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 16 of 377



 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES, DECEMBER 5, 2011 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 
 
The City Council convened at 7:00 p.m. on the above date, to conduct a Regular Meeting of the 
Fairbanks City Council at the City Council Chambers, 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska, 
with Mayor Jerry Cleworth presiding and with the following Council Members in attendance: 
 
Council Members Present: Vivian Stiver, Seat A 

Chad Roberts, Seat B 
Bernard Gatewood, Seat C 
Jim Matherly, Seat D 
Lloyd Hilling, Seat E 
 

Absent: John Eberhart, Seat F (Excused) 
 

Also Present: Paul Ewers, City Attorney 
Janey Hovenden, City Clerk 
Carmen Randle, Controller 
Ryan Rickels, IT Director 
Tony C. Shumate, Director Personnel/Purchasing/RM 
Jim N. Soileau, Chief Financial Officer 
Laren Zager, Police Chief 
 

INVOCATION 
 
The Invocation was given by City Clerk Janey Hovenden. 
 
FLAG SALUTATION 
 
Mayor Cleworth led the Flag Salutation. 
 
CITIZEN’S COMMENTS 
 
Victor Buberge, PO Box 58192, Fairbanks – Mr. Buberge spoke to the need for public toilets in 
the downtown area.  He suggested using grant money for the project or creating a City ordinance 
that would require local businesses to allow public access to their restroom facilities.  He 
commented that many downtown businesses are discriminatory in who they allow to use their 
restrooms.  He also suggested charging a small fee per use to save expense to the City.  He 
wished the Council and City staff a Happy Thanksgiving holiday.   
 
Mr. Hilling asked Mr. Buberge what he meant by discriminatory.   
 
Mr. Buberge replied that he was referring to chronic inebriates.   
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 17 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT December 5, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 13 

Stephen Anderson, 1653 2nd Avenue, Fairbanks – Mr. Anderson stated that he is a member of the 
IBEW working group in City Hall.  He expressed hope that the Council would consider IBEW’s 
proposal tonight in Executive Session.  He explained that IBEW has proposed a modest increase 
to help offset the high costs of energy and healthcare.   
 
Mr. Hilling asked if the increase requested was in alignment with the workers’ actual increased 
cost of living, not the market rate.   
 
Mr. Anderson replied in the affirmative.   
 
Ms. Stiver stated that the City of Fairbanks has no control over health care expenses and asked 
Mr. Anderson what the IBEW has done or is doing to lower health care costs for its members.   
 
Mr. Anderson replied that the Union has a Managed Care Program for members with certain 
conditions, which encourages members to become more individually responsible for their care 
and costs.   
 
Ms. Stiver asked if any audits have been done on dependent care. 
 
Mr. Anderson stated that he is not aware of all the factors.  He referred the question to Doug 
Tansy, IBEW Representative.   
 
Frank Turney, 201 7nd Avenue, Fairbanks – Mr. Turney asked for an update on a lawsuit by 
police officers against the City involving former Police Chief Hoffman.  He supported 
Mr. Buberge’s testimony on the need for public restrooms in the core downtown area.  He spoke 
to the expense of completing such a project.  Mr. Turney reminded everyone of Bill of Rights 
Day on December 15, 2011 and recommended that the Bill of Rights appear on the City Council 
agenda and be read aloud at the next regular meeting.   
 
Doug Tansy, 550 Autumn Drive, Fairbanks – Mr. Tansy, Business Representative for IBEW 
Local 1547, stated that he has been involved with the negotiations between the City and the 
Union.  He welcomed questions from the City Council.   
 
Ms. Stiver asked what the IBEW has done to lower costs and suggested that performing audits 
on dependent plans may offer some savings to members.   
 
Mr. Tansy stated that there have been multiple approaches at trying to make health care more 
affordable:  audits, decreases in deductibles, hour bank caps, changes in coverage and benefits, 
and improvements to prescription providers.   
 
Ms. Stiver asked for clarification on the current Union offer.  She summarized the previous 
year’s contract agreement.   
 
Mr. Tansy stated that the current proposal from the IBEW was a 2.5% increase to the package 
rate and a $150 increase to the City’s contribution towards health care.   
 
Ms. Stiver asked if any of the 2011 increase was allocated to health care.   

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 18 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT December 5, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 13 

 
Mr. Tansy replied that there was no vote by the IBEW members to directly allocate those 
moneys toward health care.   
 
Mayor Cleworth asked Mr. Tansy if IBEW offered an abbreviated plan for members who may 
carry more than one health care plan.   
 
Mr. Tansy answered that IBEW does not.  He explained that they used to offer a flex plan with 
five different options, but it was eliminated to cut overall costs.   
 
Denise Kendrick, 892 Runamuck Avenue, Fairbanks – Ms. Kendrick stated that she would be 
happy to answer questions concerning the labor negotiations between the City and the IBEW.   
 
David van den Berg, Fairbanks Downtown Association, 410 Cushman Street, Fairbanks – 
Mr. van den Berg provided an update on the year-end returns for the Downtown Association.  He 
announced that his organization was the recipient of an anonymous donation of $20,000.  He 
stated that, in taking both pending and received funds into account, the Downtown Association 
has met the monetary match required by City ordinance.  He mentioned a check that was 
received in the mail that day for $13,000 from Alaska Mental Health Trust.  He clarified that, 
although the grant from FNSB will not be received until 2012, it has still been counted as 
pending funds in order to meet the match.  He stated that the Downtown Association will finish 
out the 2011 calendar year $60,000 in the black.   
 
David Lerman, 126 2nd Avenue, #15, Fairbanks – Mr. Lerman stated his intent to run as a 
candidate in the 2012 Municipal Election.  He spoke to his website, “Renovation Fairbanks,” 
inviting local voters to visit the site.  He commented on the renovation underway in City Hall 
and suggested that the City place its mission statements on the wall for public viewing.  He 
expressed a need for various City-sponsored task forces, including a Renovation Task Force that 
would encourage renovation in the downtown area by eliminating permit fees.  He added that 
renovation can change people by improving their environment; thus reducing crime, violence 
and drug trafficking.   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mr. Gatewood, seconded by Mr. Hilling, moved to APPROVE the Agenda and Consent 
Agenda. 
 
Mr. Hilling, pulled Ordinance No. 5870 from the Consent Agenda.   
 

Mayor Cleworth called for objection and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 
 
City Clerk Hovenden read the Consent Agenda into the record. 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 19 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT December 5, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 13 

SPECIAL ORDERS 
 
a) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Board of Adjustment, considered scheduling the 

appeal, and possible appointment of, a hearing officer in the matter of the below-stated 
decision of the Fairbanks North Star Borough Planning Commission:   

 
  A request by Wayne Sandstrom regarding a Bed and Breakfast Residence.   
 
Mayor Cleworth explained that the Council needs to decide whether or not to hear the case or 
assign someone else to hear it on the City’s behalf and set a specific date for the hearing.   
 
Mr. Matherly asked if the hearing would be held at a Regular City Council Meeting or if a 
Special Meeting would have to be called.   
 
Mayor Cleworth replied that it would take place during a Regular City Council Meeting.   
 
Mr. Roberts asked how many appeals the Council has done.  
 
Mayor Cleworth and Mr. Ewers stated that the last two appeals were done by the City Council.   
 
Ms. Stiver clarified that, in her recollection as sitting on the Board of Adjustment, members are 
not permitted to view the property involved.  She asked if she could still sit on the board even 
though she has had communications with Mr. Sandstrom through her day job.   
 
Mr. Ewers replied that those communications would not necessarily exclude her from the 
process, but that she should disclose the nature of the contact with Mr. Sandstrom at the time of 
the hearing.   
 
Ms. Stiver, seconded by Mr. Roberts, moved to APPOINT the Council as the Board of 
Adjustment. 
 
Mr. Hilling asked why board members were not permitted to see the property during the appeal 
process.   
 
Mr. Ewers explained that, because the Board of Adjustment is only reviewing the decision made 
by the FNSB, members should only be looking at the information provided from the borough.   
 
Mr. Gatewood, in reference to the last statement on the memorandum from the City Attorney, 
asked how the Council can serve as the Board of Adjustment since criminal charges have already 
been filed by the City against Mr. Sandstrom.   
 
Mr. Ewers stated that the criminal charges prohibit only the City Attorney’s Office from sitting 
as the hearing officer.   
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO APPOINT THE COUNCIL AS 
THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT IN THE SANDSTROM APPEAL, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 20 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT December 5, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 13 

YEAS:  Gatewood, Stiver, Hilling, Matherly, Roberts 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: Eberhart 
 
Mayor Cleworth declared the MOTION CARRIED. 

 
b) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, heard interested 

citizens concerned with the below-referenced Liquor License Application for Transfer.   
 
 Transfer of Location and Name Change: 
 
 Type:    Beverage Dispensary 
 License:   Rock N Rodeo Bar & Grill, #1377 
 Licensee/Applicant:  Scruff-N-Pork’s Inc. 
 Physical Location:  600 Old Steese Highway, Fairbanks 
 
 Current DBA:   Greyhound Lounge, #1377 
 Licensee:   Scruff-N-Pork’s Inc. 
 Location:   1351 Cushman Street, Fairbanks 
 
Mayor Cleworth informed the Council that the City Building Department has protested the 
Liquor License Transfer.   
 
Ms. Stiver, seconded by Mr. Gatewood, moved to PROTEST contingent upon City Building 
Department approval.   
 
Mayor Cleworth called for Public Testimony and, hearing none, declared Public Testimony 
closed. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO PROTEST CONTINGENT 
UPON CITY BUILDING DEPARTMENT APPROVAL OF THE LIQUOR LICENSE 
TRANSFER, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Gatewood, Roberts, Matherly, Stiver, Hilling 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: Eberhart 
Mayor Cleworth declared the MOTION CARRIED. 

 
c) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, heard interested 

citizens concerned with the below-referenced Liquor License Application(s) for renewal.   
 

Lic # 
Establishment 

Name 
License Type Premise Location Owner Name 

1639 Alaska Salmon Bake 
Restaurant/Eating 
Place-Seasonal 

2300 Airport Way Intra-Sea Inc 

3118 V.F.W. Post #3629 Club 324 2nd St 
V.F.W. Golden Heart 
Post #3629 

3151 Fred Meyer 485 Package Store 3755 Airport Way Fred Meyer Stores Inc. 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 21 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT December 5, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 13 

4168 Lower LA 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
636 28th Ave Kelco Properties Inc 

4772 Ajimi Restaurant 
Restaurant/Eating 

Place 
550 Third Avenue Kwang Yul Lee 

4816 Mayan Palace 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
3401 Airport Way 

Taco Azteca 
Incorporated 

4831 
Wasabi Bay 
Restaurant 

Restaurant/Eating 
Place 

1448 S Cushman St Chung W Pak 

4846 
Wal-Mart Super-
center #2722 

Package Store 
537 Johansen 
Expressway 

Wal-Mart Stores Inc. 

 
Mr. Matherly, seconded by Ms. Stiver, moved to WAIVE Protest on the Renewals. 
 
Mayor Cleworth called for Public Testimony and, hearing none, declared Public Testimony 
closed. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN, ON THE MOTION TO WAIVE PROTEST ON THE 
LIQUOR LICENSE RENEWALS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Matherly, Hilling, Roberts, Stiver, Gatewood 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: Eberhart 
Mayor Cleworth declared the MOTION CARRIED. 

 
MAYOR’S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
Mayor Cleworth asked Tony Shumate, Jim Soileau and Jeff Johnson to come forward.  He 
thanked Mr. Johnson for his service on the Permanent Fund Review Board.  Mayor Cleworth 
announced that there would be a presentation from Bert Wagnon on the City’s Permanent Fund.   
 
Bert Wagnon provided the Council with an annual review of the City’s Permanent Fund.  He 
explained the asset allocation for the fund and where the dollars were invested.  He stated that on 
October 31, 2011, the total portfolio was worth nearly $100 million.  He explained that the 
shortfall at the end of October was due to “overweight equity tilt,” treasury and tips, and 
commodities.  He shared future investment plans for the Permanent Fund.   
 
Mr. Hilling asked if the decline in the market value of the fund in mid-2011 was due primarily 
to the City’s draw.  He asked for clarification on the past three years’ fund earnings.  He inquired 
as to the major components that have had an effect on commodities.   
 
Mr. Wagnon clarified that the dip in the market was due not only to the draw, but also a decline 
in market value; he explained that there has been an average increase of 9.73% to the fund over 
the past three years.  He spoke to the biggest components that have had the most significant 
effect on commodities:  agriculture and energy.   
 
Mr. Roberts asked for clarification on who sets the range and benches for the Permanent Fund.   
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 22 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT December 5, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 13 

Mr. Wagnon stated that the Permanent Fund Review Board is responsible for selecting the 
strategic bench and range and that Alaska Permanent Capital Management (APCM) has to 
comply with those parameters.   
 
Ms. Stiver asked for Mr. Soileau to come forward and provide the exact dollar amount of the 
City of Fairbanks’ draw from the Permanent Fund in 2011.   
 
Mr. Soileau stated that the total draw from the Permanent Fund in 2011 was $4,480,072.  He 
specified that, of that total amount, $3,000,000 was drawn on June 30, 2011 and $1,480,072 was 
drawn the last week of November.   
 
Mr. Hilling asked why the market dropped so significantly in the month of October. 
 
Mr. Wagnon replied, in his personal belief, that it was because the market was very oversold. 
 
Jeff Johnson corrected Mr. Wagnon’s earlier response to Mr. Roberts’ question regarding 
benches and range, stating that the fund’s benches are imbedded in City code and are not set by 
the Permanent Fund Review Board.   
 
Mayor Cleworth thanked Mr. Wagnon for the presentation.  Mayor Cleworth spoke to 
Resolution No. 4500 approved at the last Council meeting regarding sidewalk improvements 
near Nordale School.  He clarified to the Council that the grant amount should have been 
$65,000 with no match, instead of the $35,000 stated on the resolution.  Mayor Cleworth spoke 
to the efforts to consolidate GVEA billing in order to make processing more streamlined and 
save money for the City.  He stated that of the 2,700 street lights in the City of Fairbanks, 1,300 
can now be remotely controlled, also saving cost to the City.  He expressed the goal of being 
completely converted to LED street lights by 2012.  Mayor Cleworth offered Council the option 
to cancel the next Finance Committee meeting, stating that there was nothing on the agenda from 
the administration, with the exception of possible discussion on the 2012 budget.  With no 
objection from the Council, Mayor Cleworth announced the cancelation of the regularly 
scheduled Finance Committee meeting.  He invited the Council to attend a meeting with the 
Interior Delegation regarding Capital projects and legislative issues on Friday, December 16, 
2011.  He thanked Ron Woolf and Tim Sovde for agreeing to serve on the Permanent Fund 
Review Board and the FNSB Planning Commission, respectively.  Mayor Cleworth responded 
to Frank Turney’s request for an update on the lawsuit involving the former Police Chief; he 
informed Mr. Turney that the City Attorney would try to provide an update at the next Council 
meeting.  He also acknowledged Mr. Turney’s request for the Bill of Rights to be read at the next 
meeting.  Mayor Cleworth asked CFO, Jim Soileau to come forward again and provide a status 
report on outstanding City bonds.   
 
Mr. Soileau reviewed the legislation authorizing the payoff of the Transportation Center 
Revenue Bonds and the Police Station General Obligation Bond.  He stated that the City has 
been working with the trustee to pay off the transportation bonds as quickly as possible, but that 
full payment cannot be made until February 15, 2012.  He outlined the cost savings to the City 
by paying off the bonds early.  Mr. Soileau addressed the Police Station Obligation Bond payoff 
that was authorized by voters in the 2011 Municipal Election.  He stated that City staff have been 
working diligently to have everything in order for the scheduled payoff of December 12, 2011.   

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 23 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT December 5, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 8 of 13 

 
Ms. Stiver asked what the City’s savings would be for the early payoff of the Police Bond.   
 
Mr. Soileau, in response to Ms. Stiver’s question, stated that there isn’t a monetary savings by 
prepaying the bond; but that at the time of payoff, the money will be placed in escrow, defeasing 
the bond and releasing the City’s obligation.   
 
Mr. Matherly asked why the Transportation Bond could not be paid before February 15, 2012.   
 
Mr. Soileau replied that, although he is unaware of the legalities, he believes the reason for that 
date is so that the payoff is cleaner.   
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
a) Ordinance No. 5866 – An Ordinance to Amend Fairbanks General Code by Enacting 

FGC Section 1-20, Code of Ethics.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.  SECOND 
READING AND PUBLIC HEARING.   

 
Mr. Matherly, seconded by Mr. Roberts, moved to ADOPT Ordinance No. 5866. 
 
Mayor Cleworth called for Public Testimony and, hearing none, declared Public Testimony 
closed. 
 
Ms. Stiver inquired as to the reason for the ordinance’s introduction.   
 
Mayor Cleworth explained that the Code of Ethics is a result of the City’s decision to opt-out of 
the State’s APOC requirements.  He indicated that, currently, the FGC contains a Code of Ethics, 
but it is scattered throughout the code.  He stated that the intent of Ordinance No. 5866 is to 
solidify and fulfill the City’s obligation to maintain a formal Code of Ethics.   
 
Mr. Roberts asked if the proposed Code of Ethics mirrors the state.  He raised the question of 
consequences if a Council Member were to violate the code.   
 
Mr. Ewers replied that the State of Alaska’s Executive Branch Ethics Act is referenced in the 
Ordinance to provide guidance.  He indicated that it was the Mayor’s intent to keep the City’s 
Code of Ethics brief and simple.  In response to Mr. Roberts’ second question, Mr. Ewers stated 
that a violation from a member of the Council would be reviewed by the Council as a body and 
action would be taken accordingly.   
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN, ON THE MOTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 
5866, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Roberts, Matherly, Gatewood, Hilling, Stiver 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: Eberhart 
Mayor Cleworth declared the MOTION CARRIED and 
ORDINANCE NO. 5866 ADOPTED. 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 24 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT December 5, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 9 of 13 

 
b) Ordinance No. 5867 – An Ordinance to Repeal Chapter 74, Article VI, of the Fairbanks 

General Code, Occupational Privilege Tax.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.  SECOND 
READING AND PUBLIC HEARING.   

 
Mr. Matherly, seconded by Ms. Stiver, moved to ADOPT Ordinance No. 5867. 
 
Mayor Cleworth called for Public Testimony and, hearing none, declared Public Testimony 
closed. 
 
Ms. Stiver questioned the purpose of Ordinance No. 5867.   
 
Mayor Cleworth indicated that the reason for the ordinance is to eliminate old City code that is 
no longer relevant.  He summarized the original purpose of the tax. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN, ON THE MOTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE 
NO. 5867, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Stiver, Matherly, Gatewood, Hilling, Roberts 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: Eberhart 
Mayor Cleworth declared the MOTION CARRIED and 
ORDINANCE NO. 5867 ADOPTED. 

 
c) Ordinance No. 5868 – An Ordinance to Repeal Chapter 26, Article V, Section 26-201 of 

the Fairbanks General Code, Residential Emergency Services Tax.  Introduced by Mayor 
Cleworth.  SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING.   

 
Mr. Hilling, seconded by Mr. Matherly, moved to ADOPT Ordinance No. 5868. 
 
Mayor Cleworth called for Public Testimony and, hearing none, declared Public Testimony 
closed. 
 
Mayor Cleworth stated that Ordinance No. 5868 is more clean-up of unnecessary or irrelevant 
City code.   
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE 
NO. 5868, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Hilling, Roberts, Stiver, Matherly, Gatewood 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: Eberhart 
Mayor Cleworth declared the MOTION CARRIED and 
ORDINANCE NO. 5868 ADOPTED. 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 25 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT December 5, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 10 of 13 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
a) Ordinance No. 5869 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code Chapter 66, 

Section 66-43, Senior Citizen Rate.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth. 
 
  ADVANCED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
b) Ordinance No. 5870 – An Ordinance Authorizing Sale of Surplus Property to the Korean 

Community of Fairbanks, Inc.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth. 
 
Mr. Hilling, seconded by Ms. Stiver, moved to ADVANCE Ordinance No. 5870.   
 
Mr. Hilling informed the Mayor and Council that the Interdenominational Ministerial Alliance 
has also expressed interest in the property under discussion.  He stated that it would be fair to 
inform them of the proposed ordinance.   
 
Mayor Cleworth stated that the City has the right to sell a property at less than fair market value 
if the buyer is a non-profit organization.  He explained that if the property is being sold to 
anyone other than a non-profit, the property must first be offered to buyers at fair-market value; 
then, if there is no interest, the property can go through the bid process.  He stated that because 
the Korean Community of Fairbanks is a non-profit organization, they are entitled to a definitive 
answer from the Council.   
 
Mr. Gatewood expressed that if the City is going to sell the property to a non-profit group, he 
believes its purpose should serve all Fairbanks citizens.  He stated his concern that selling the 
property to the Korean Community of Fairbanks would benefit only a select group of citizens.   
 
Mr. Roberts suggested that the City market all properties available for purchase instead of 
waiting for potential buyers to come forward.   
 
Ms. Stiver echoed Mr. Roberts’ opinion on marketing, stating that the City has lost money in the 
past by selling properties for less than market value.   
 
Mr. Matherly asked if the Korean Community of Fairbanks had already secured financing for 
the purchase.   
 
Mayor Cleworth stated that there has only been one meeting with the Korean Community of 
Fairbanks and the offer was made at that time, adding that he was unaware of any financing.  He 
referenced a statement in Ordinance No. 5870 that places a 5-year construction stipulation on the 
agreement.  Mayor Cleworth gave a brief summary of how the City has handled the sale of 
surplus property in the past.  He stated that in order to market all City properties, a complete 
inventory list would have to be created and published.  He added that most of the properties 
marketed in the past have not been desirable, but some sold.  In response to Ms. Stiver’s 
comment regarding the sale of property for less than market value, Mayor Cleworth stated that 
the City tends to recover much, if not all, of the loss through the collection of property taxes.   
 
Mr. Hilling asked about the value of the property under discussion. 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 26 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT December 5, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 11 of 13 

 
Mayor Cleworth replied that there has been no formal appraisal, but that Pat Smith, City 
Property Manager, estimated its best market value to be $45,000.  He informed the Council that, 
in the event of a renewed interest in the property by multiple parties, Ordinance No. 5870 should 
be killed and the bid process should begin.   
 
Ms. Stiver clarified her earlier comment on past sales, stating that she would support more 
marketing for City properties.   
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO ADVANCE ORDINANCE 
NO. 5870, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Gatewood, Stiver, Hilling, Matherly, Roberts 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: Eberhart 
Mayor Cleworth declared the MOTION CARRIED and 
ORDINANCE NO. 5870 ADVANCED. 

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
 Committee Reports 
 
Bed Tax Discretionary Fund Committee – Ms. Stiver announced the upcoming Presentation 
Meetings at 6:00 P.M. on December 13 & 14 and the Distribution Meeting on December 23 at 
noon.   
 
COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 
a) Appointment to the Fairbanks North Star Borough Planning Commission.   
 
  APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
b) Appointment to the Permanent Fund Review Board.   
 
  APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Gatewood spoke of an article he had read that listed Fairbanks International Airport as one 
of the top nine beautiful airports in the world.  He commended Bettisworth North for their work 
on the remodel of the building.  He applauded FNSB Superintendent, Pete Lewis, for making the 
call to close schools due to poor road conditions.   
 
Mr. Roberts commented on the drastic change in the weather in a short period of time.  He 
thanked Public Works and Mayor Cleworth for the Christmas lights in the downtown area.   
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 27 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT December 5, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 12 of 13 

Ms. Stiver thanked those who signed the sympathy card for the family of Ms. Rockar who 
recently died as the result of a hit-and-run incident in Fairbanks.  She welcomed Tim Sovde as 
the City of Fairbanks appointee to the FNSB Planning Commission.   
 
Mr. Matherly expressed his sympathy for the passing of Sue Gregory.  He mentioned the 
explosion at the gas station in Cantwell, remarking on how unexpectedly accidents can happen.  
He echoed Mr. Gatewood’s commendation of the FNSB School District for closing schools.  He 
cautioned the public on the use of cell phones while driving.   
 
Mr. Hilling promised Mr. Buberge to look into the public restroom issue in the downtown area.  
He acknowledged Mr. Buburge’s idea that local businesses could provide use of their facilities 
for a fee.  He spoke to Mr. Anderson’s earlier comment on the rising cost of energy, and assured 
him that the point would be considered during negotiation of the IBEW labor contract.  
Mr. Hilling recognized Mr. Lerman’s suggestion to create various City task forces and praised 
him for his persistence.  He offered to research the City’s mission statement.  Mr. Hilling spoke 
to a possible review of the speed limit on Cowles Street and the process required to raise the 
limit from 25 to 30 mph.  He suggested other options to slow traffic.  Mr. Hilling expressed his 
admiration for Nelson Miles and the hope that the City Council had answered Mr. Miles’ 
questions regarding the bond payoffs.  He commended Mayor Cleworth for initiating the clean-
up of the Fairbanks Code of Ordinances.  He spoke to the proposal brought forth by the Korean 
Community of Fairbanks and expressed concern that the ordinance receive proper public notice. 
 
Mayor Cleworth, in response to Mr. Hilling’s concern with the speed limit on Cowles, stated 
that the speed limit was reduced due to numerous complaints from the public and has been the 
most effective way to slow traffic and appease the area’s residents.  Mayor Cleworth assured 
Mr. Hilling that all advertisement requirements outlined in the City code have been and will have 
been met regarding Ordinance No. 5870.  Mayor Cleworth asked Ms. Hovenden to address the 
update to the City’s online Code of Ordinances, “Municode.”   
 
Ms. Hovenden stated that all 2011 code modifications to date have been submitted for 
codification.  She explained that, beginning in 2012, the online code library will be updated 
quarterly, while code books will remain on an annual update schedule.   
 
CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Ewers announced that an Alaska Supreme Court case involving the City of Fairbanks was 
scheduled for argument at Lathrop High School, but had been postponed due to school closure.   
 
Mr. Roberts, seconded by Mr. Matherly, moved to go into Executive Session for the purpose 
of discussing Labor Negotiations for PSEA and IBEW. 
 

Mayor Cleworth called for objection and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 
 
Mayor Cleworth called for a five minute recess. 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 28 of 377



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT December 5, 2011 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 13 of 13 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
a) Labor Contract Negotiations – PSEA and IBEW 
 
The City Council met in Executive Session to discuss labor negotiations for PSEA and IBEW.  
Direction was given to staff and no action was taken.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mr. Roberts, seconded by Ms. Stiver, moved to ADJOURN the meeting. 
 

Mayor Cleworth called for objection and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 
 
Mayor Cleworth declared the Meeting adjourned at 10:10 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JERRY CLEWORTH, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
JANEY HOVENDEN, CMC, CITY CLERK 
 
Transcribed by:  DS 
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 29 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 30 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 31 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 32 of 377



 
 
 
 

Table of Contents 
 
 Page  

 
A. Notice of Appeal filed by Wayne Sandstrom 1-30  
 
B. Record from the Planning Director 31-165  
 
C. Written Brief(s) and Reply Brief(s): 

 
 Written Brief filed by Wayne Sandstrom                          166-195  

 
 Written Reply Brief filed by Bernardo Hernandez,   
      Director, Community Planning                                          196-208  
 
 Written Reply Brief filed by Wayne Sandstrom               209-218  

  
D. FNSB Code 18.54.070 Appeals                                                  219-223  
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 33 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 34 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 35 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 36 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 37 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 38 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 39 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 40 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 41 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 42 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 43 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 44 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 45 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 46 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 47 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 48 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 49 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 50 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 51 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 52 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 53 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 54 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 55 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 56 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 57 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 58 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 59 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 60 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 61 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 62 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 63 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 64 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 65 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 66 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 67 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 68 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 69 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 70 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 71 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 72 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 73 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 74 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 75 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 76 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 77 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 78 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 79 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 80 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 81 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 82 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 83 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 84 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 85 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 86 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 87 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 88 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 89 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 90 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 91 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 92 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 93 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 94 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 95 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 96 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 97 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 98 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 99 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 100 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 101 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 102 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 103 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 104 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 105 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 106 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 107 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 108 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 109 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 110 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 111 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 112 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 113 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 114 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 115 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 116 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 117 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 118 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 119 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 120 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 121 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 122 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 123 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 124 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 125 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 126 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 127 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 128 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 129 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 130 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 131 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 132 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 133 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 134 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 135 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 136 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 137 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 138 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 139 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 140 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 141 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 142 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 143 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 144 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 145 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 146 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 147 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 148 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 149 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 150 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 151 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 152 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 153 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 154 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 155 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 156 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 157 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 158 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 159 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 160 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 161 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 162 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 163 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 164 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 165 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 166 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 167 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 168 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 169 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 170 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 171 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 172 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 173 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 174 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 175 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 176 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 177 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 178 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 179 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 180 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 181 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 182 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 183 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 184 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 185 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 186 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 187 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 188 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 189 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 190 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 191 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 192 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 193 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 194 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 195 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 196 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 197 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 198 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 199 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 200 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 201 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 202 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 203 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 204 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 205 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 206 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 207 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 208 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 209 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 210 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 211 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 212 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 213 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 214 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 215 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 216 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 217 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 218 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 219 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 220 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 221 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 222 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 223 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 224 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 225 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 226 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 227 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 228 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 229 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 230 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 231 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 232 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 233 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 234 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 235 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 236 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 237 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 238 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 239 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 240 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 241 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 242 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 243 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 244 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 245 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 246 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 247 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 248 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 249 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 250 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 251 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 252 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 253 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 254 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 255 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 256 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 257 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 258 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 259 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 260 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 261 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 262 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 263 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 264 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 265 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 266 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 267 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 268 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 269 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 270 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 271 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 272 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 273 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 274 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 275 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 276 of 377



Sponsored by:  Mayor Cleworth 
Finance Committee:  January 31, 2012 

Introduced: February 06, 2012 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 5875 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 86 VEHICLES FOR HIRE 

CHAUFFEUR REQUIREMENTS 
  
 WHEREAS, the City seeks to streamline the issuance of chauffeur licenses and provide a one-
stop-shop for applicants eliminating the need for applicants to go to the State Division of Motor 
Vehicles and Alaska State Troopers Offices for required reports; and 
 
 WHEREAS, online criminal background checks are now available which provide instant results 
and a more thorough nationwide criminal history search; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the current character references requirement has proven to be problematic, has not 
proven to be a good measure of an applicant’s character, and has not achieved its intended purpose; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed changes make it more affordable and convenient for renewal 
applicants who are already seasoned career drivers who have proven their safety and driving 
capabilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed changes will streamline the application process, will provide instant 
results for applicants, and will be less costly for the majority of applicants,    
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:   
 
SECTION 1.  Fairbanks General Code Chapter 86 Vehicles for Hire is amended as follows (new text in 
underlined bold font, deleted text in strikeout font):   
 

Sec. 86-76. - Chauffeur's license required.  
 
  (a) No person shall operate a commercial passenger transport vehicle upon the streets of the city 
until the person has been issued and thereafter holds in effect a chauffeur's license granted by the 
city.  
 
  (b) Any person operating or driving a vehicle in violation of subsection (a) of this section shall be 
deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction of such offense by a court shall be subject to 
punishment as prescribed in FGC Section 1-15(a).  
 
Sec. 86-77. - Application for chauffeur's license.  
 
  (a) All applications for issuance or renewal of a chauffeur's license shall be made upon forms 
provided for this purpose by the city clerk, and the applications shall be submitted to the city clerk 
for review. The applicant shall also submit a current criminal history report obtained from the state 
department of public safety if a state resident or, if not, a current record obtained from the state of 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 277 of 377



Ordinance No. 5875 
Page 2 

residency, and a current driving record.  The requirements to be fulfilled prior to issuance of a 
chauffeur's license shall be as follows:  
 

(1) The applicant must be 21 years of age or older and furnish proof if requested. 

(2) The applicant must be able to read, write and speak the English language. 

(3) The applicant must be in possession of a current Alaska State Driver's License. 

(4) The applicant must not have had a conviction within 24 months of: 

a. A moving traffic violation which results in suspension or revocation of the 
applicant's driver's license pursuant to AS 28.15.221 through 28.15.261;  

b. Reckless or negligent driving; 

c. Driving while license is limited, suspended or revoked; 

(5) The applicant must not have had his driver's license suspended or revoked within two 
years prior to the application date. 

(6) Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, the applicant must not have had a felony 
conviction within eight years or a misdemeanor conviction within four years of:  

a. Prostitution or promotion of prostitution; 

b. Any offense under AS Title 11, Chapter 71 Controlled Substances. 

c. Any felony or misdemeanor which includes as an element the use or threat of force 
upon a person;  

d. Burglary, felony larceny, fraud or embezzlement; 

e. Any sexual offense; 

f. Any homicide or assault involving operation of a motor vehicle; 

g. Two separate felony convictions of any type; 

h. Operation or driving a vehicle while intoxicated within five years or within eight 
years for a felony conviction;  

i. Refusal to submit to a chemical test as defined in AS 28.35.032 within five years or 
within eight years for a felony conviction.  

(7) The applicant must not be addicted to the use of intoxicants or narcotics. 

(8) The applicant must be of good moral character and repute, to be evidenced by two 
affidavits of respectable citizens who personally know the applicant.  

(9) The applicant must not be a sex offender or kidnapper subject to the registration 
requirements of AS Title 12, Chapter 63. 

 
  (b) The City Clerk’s Office shall procure an online criminal history report for each 
applicant, the cost of which will be included in the Chauffeur License application fee in the 
City Schedule of Fees and Charges for Services.   

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 278 of 377



Ordinance No. 5875 
Page 3 

Sec. 86-79. - Residency.  
 
  An applicant for a chauffeur's license must have resided within the Fairbanks North Star Borough 
for a minimum of 30 days immediately prior to application. This residence requirement may be 
waived by the city clerk if the applicant has had a Fairbanks chauffeur's license within the last five 
years.  
 
Sec. 86-80. - Reserved.  
 
Sec. 86-81. - Chauffeur's training required.  
 
Within 24 months of issuance of a city chauffeur's license, each driver shall:  
 

(1) Attend a defensive driving school and furnish a copy of the certificate of completion to 
the city clerk. 

 
(2) If the city clerk does not receive the certificate described in subsection (1) by the end of 

the 24-month period, the license shall not be renewed.  

 
SECTION 2. That the effective date of this Ordinance shall be the ______ day of February 2012. 
 
 
 
             
       Jerry Cleworth, City Mayor 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk   Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 279 of 377



M:\!indiv\city clerk files\Miscellaneous\Defensive Driving Courses  Page 1 
 

DMV Approved Defensive Driving Courses 
 

 
All courses mentioned below are DMV approved courses, allowing for a two point 

reduction in the individual’s drivers license point accumulation total. If you would like to request 
defensive driving in lieu of the points on an open citation, you must FIRST go to the City 
Clerk’s Office and fill out a Defensive Driving Request Form.  

 
 

 

INTERNET COURSES 
Certificate to 

Student 
Notify DMV  

 

Website  Phone         

AARP.org/drive (50yr +)  (888) 227‐7669  Yes  No  19.95 

AlaskaDriver.com  (888) 714‐7425  Yes  Yes  39.99 

DrivingUniversity.com  (877) 937‐4846  Yes  Yes  30.00 

idrivesafely.com  (800) 723‐1955  Yes  No  39.95 

TrafficSchoolOnline.com  (800) 800‐3579  Unofficial Copy  Yes  29.95 

GoToTrafficSchool.com  (888) 329‐7069  Yes  Yes  26.95 

 

 

 

CLASSROOM COURSES
(All classroom courses provide certificate to student and notify DMV) 

Alaska Peace Officers Association  (907) 455‐8335 

Jan. 2 & 3  Apr. 2 & 3  Jul. 2 & 3  Oct. 1 & 2 

Feb. 6 & 7  May 7 & 8  Aug. 6 & 7  Nov. 5 & 6 

Mar. 5& 6  Jun. 4 & 5  Sep. 10 & 11  Dec. 3 & 4 

Cherokee Riders  (907) 455‐0010 

Jan. 7  Apr. 3  Jul. 10  Oct. 6 

Feb. 11  May. 8  Aug. 14  Nov. 10 

Mar. 10  Jun. 29  Sep. 4  Dec. 8 

AARP  (888) 227‐7669 

Call for schedule and availability 

 

 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 280 of 377



PROPOSAL FOR A ONE-STOP-SHOP  
FOR CHAUFFEUR LICENSE APPLICANTS 

 
NOTARIZED STATEMENTS:  Inconvenient for applicant and very time-consuming.  Recent residents 
do not know people who can vouch for their good character.  It has been observed many times that 
applicants and renewals resort to paying other driver’s to stop by and sign on their behalf for a fee.  
References seldom even read what they are signing.   
 
Recommendation:  Discontinue.  Their statement states that they are of good moral character.   
 
8 YEAR LOOK-BACK CRIMINAL HISTORY REPORT(S) – All applicants must obtain their criminal 
history from the Alaska State Troopers ($20.00).  If the applicant is not dishonest this will fulfill their 
criminal history report requirement.   
 
If the applicant has resided in another state within the past 8 years, they must also contact their state(s) 
of residency and request their criminal history report from a governmental agency.  This delays 
issuance until required documents are received.  The fees from different states vary and we usually are 
not informed of their costs.  As other states become more electronically responsive, they want to email 
the results to the applicant (sometimes that is the only way they will respond) which calls into question 
their legitimacy.  Some states (California) will outright deny issuance of criminal history reports for 
licensure requirements.   
 
Recommendation:  The agency used by AML/JIA’s police investigator for background checks of 
potential police officers is “Criminal Background Checks (CBC)”.   
 
We can electronically search 46 state court records (excludes:  DE, MA, SD and WY)  The following is 
a description of the National Criminal Background Check: 
 

The national criminal background check is an instant search that is the fastest most broadest way to investigate 
someone’s criminal history within the United States.  Our national criminal background checks search for criminal court 
records, county court records, correctional facility records, sex offender and most wanted criminal records.  National 
criminal background reports show correctional facility records on current and historical inmates, court records, current and 
historical felony convictions, misdemeanor offenses and some traffic offenses and/or infractions.   

 Search results include felony, misdemeanor, some traffic records and some infractions 
 The national criminal background check only returns convictions, NOT arrest records  
 The national criminal background check only includes sex offender data and limited other criminal data for some 

states.  In order to keep this search instant, most criminal records from DE, MA, SD and WY are not included. 
Like all our other criminal background checks, our national criminal background check comes with a free National Sex 
Offender Check and a free America's Most Wanted Criminals List Search. 

 
This provides instant results.  Applicant would not have to drive anywhere and would not have to pay 
$20.00 for their Alaska criminal history.  This would eliminate any concerns about other states of 
residency or other states where criminal convictions might exist.   
 
The report would not contain arrest records that did not result in convictions.  Also it would not include 
information for 4 states listed above which would require the applicant to obtain the information as they 
do now.  The report would include the DUI and DWSOL records because there is a criminal element to 
the offenses.     
 
5 YEAR LOOK-BACK DRIVING RECORD(S) – All applicants must obtain their driving record from the 
State DMV (same building as AST) ($10.00) 
 
If the applicant has resided in another state within the past 5 years, they must also contact their state(s) 
of residency and request their driving record from a governmental agency.  This delays issuance until 
required documents are received.  The fees from different states vary and we usually are not informed 
of their costs.   
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 281 of 377



The national criminal history described above would capture the following offenses that would prevent a 
license under the current code:  1) A moving violation which resulted in the suspension or revocation of 
the applicant’s license, 2) Reckless or negligent driving, and 3) Driving while license is limited, 
suspended, or revoked.  (See email from Paul Ewers stating Reckless Driving and Driving while license 
is limited, suspended or revoked is a misdemeanor and would appear on criminal history.  However a 
“point system” suspension would not.)  In my history, there has been only one denial for all of these 
offenses and the Council granted the applicant’s appeal.   
 
Currently the CBC provides driving records for individual states only for an additional $24.95 per state.  
It appears that the State of Alaska DMV does not share its information electronically yet so CBC 
requires 7 days to complete.   
 
Recommendation:  For a one stop shop and to be more cost effective for the applicant, we would 
need to 1) rely solely on the criminal history for this type of offense, 2) eliminate these offenses that 
prevent a license, or continue to send them to DMV for their records or out of state if needed.   
 
LOOKUP ON ALASKA SEX OFFENDER’S REGISTRY – The Clerk does a search by name on the 
State’s Sex Offender’s Registry online and prints the results.   
 
Recommendation:  The CBC includes the nationwide Sex Offender’s Registry for free automatically.   
 
DEFENSIVE DRIVING CERTIFICATE (RENEWALS ONLY) – This is inconvenient for the applicant, 
benefits the cab companies ONLY by saving money on their insurance costs, it adds anywhere from 
$20.00 to $40.00 plus a $10.00 Test Fee (Depending on agency), and hurts the career cab driver who 
has already been driving cab for at least two years and has already proven his/her safety and driving 
capabilities.  The ones who should take it, if at all, are the new drivers.   
 
Recommendation:  Eliminate this requirement.   
 

NEW PROCESS / CHANGES PROPOSED: 

Eliminate: 2 notarized statements by character references 
  Defensive Driving Requirement 

Increase: Fees.  Increase the application fee to $75.00 to cover the cost of the online criminal 
history report and charge it regardless of new or renewing applicants.   
 
ADVANTAGES OF PROPOSED RECOMMENDATION:.  This provides instant results.  Checks 
criminal history nationwide and provides a one-stop-shop.  These combined changes will result in a 
cost savings to the majority of applicants.  A very few may pay a few extra dollars, but the convenience 
highly outweighs the small increase.   
 

REQUIRED PROCESS COMPARISONS: 

CURRENT 
 Completed Application 
 Notarized statements by two Character References 
 Copy of AK Driver’s License (except Military and Dependents) 
 8 year Criminal History Report(s) by Governmental Agency 
 5 year look-back Driving Record(s) by Governmental Agency 
 Lookup on Alaska Sex Offender’s Registry 
 RENEWALS ONLY – Defensive Driving Certificate - $30 - $50.00 
 Application Fee $25.00 
 Biennial License Fee $100.00 

PROPOSED 
 Complete Application 
 Copy of AK Driver’s License (except Military and Dependents) 
 Sign release to do a National Criminal History Search 
 Application Fee $75.00 (To cover cost of CBC Lookup) 
 Biennial License Fee $100.00 
 

 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 282 of 377



1

Janey J. Hovenden

From: Paul J. Ewers
Sent: Wednesday, January 25, 2012 12:15 PM
To: Janey J. Hovenden
Subject: Chauffeur's ordinance
Attachments: Ordinance _____ Chauffeur License paul ver.doc

Hi Janey, 
 
Attached are my suggestions.  Please note that this is a new document that I saved on my desktop.  I tried to take your 
document and do highlighting, strike out, etc., but it was too confusing.  You will find:   
 

1. Took out the italic in the heading “CHAUFFEUR REQUIREMENTS”  (unless you wanted that) 
2. Big rewrites for the whereases 
3. Corrected the format for Sec. 86‐76 (no indentation for text with (a)’s and (b)’s) 
4. Sec. 86‐77: made the first part (a) and added an new (b) which includes the language about the Clerk 

running criminal history reports 
 
One question about the adjustment in the fees – will a renewal applicant be required to pay for a full background 
check?   
 
Paul J. Ewers 
City Attorney 
City of Fairbanks 
800 Cushman Street 
Fairbanks, Alaska 99701 
(907) 459‐6750 
(907) 459‐6761 (fax) 
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 283 of 377



CURRENT CITY FEES            PROPOSED CITY FEES 
Application Fee (1 time)      $  25.00   Application Fee (Each time)     $  75.00 
Chauffeur License (New & Renewal)    $100.00   Chauffeur License (New & Renewal)  $100.00 
 
Current out of pocket fees paid by applicant: 
 

Criminal History (Alaska only)      $ 20.00    Paid to State AST 
(Additional Fees for Additional States) 

Driving Record (Alaska only       $ 10.00    Paid to State DMV 
(Additional Fees for Additional States) 

Defensive Driving (1st Renewal Only)     $ 50.00    Paid to DD Course Organization 
 
Application Fee (New Applicant Only)    $ 25.00   City of Fairbanks 
 
License (2 year)          $100.00    City of Fairbanks 

 
This will work and can be expanded to other occupational licenses.   
 
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 284 of 377



 
Criminal Background Records 

www.CriminalBackgroundRecords.com  

 ORDER CRIMINAL RECORD   SEARCH CRIMINAL BACKGROUNDS   SAMPLE CRIMINAL RECORD  

 YOUR ORDER LOOKUP   TENANT SCREENING   EMPLOYMENT SCREENING  

  

National Criminal Background Checks --------- select a state ---------

 

  
 

 January News 
Workplace Violence Preventative 

Measures 
 

View Demo & Videos  
  

Instant Nationwide Criminal Background Check 
(Order a national background check now for $59.95)

National Criminal Background Check:
Turnaround Time: Instant (may take up to a minute if a lot of records are returned)
Cost: $59.95 
Other costs/surcharges: NONE
Coverage: USA

Description of National Criminal History Search: 
The national criminal background check is an instant search that is the fastest most broadest way to investigate someone’s 
criminal history within the United States.  Our national criminal background checks search for criminal court records, county 
court records, correctional facility records, sex offender and most wanted criminal records.  National criminal background 
reports show correctional facility records on current and historical inmates, court records, current and historical felony 
convictions, misdemeanor offenses and some traffic offenses and/or infractions.  

Search results include felony, misdemeanor, some traffic records and some infractions•
The national criminal background check only returns convictions, NOT arrest records •
The national criminal background check only includes sex offender data and limited other criminal data for some 
states.  In order to keep this search instant, most criminal records from DE, MA, SD and WY are not included.

•

Like all our other criminal background checks, our national criminal background check comes with a free National Sex 
Offender Check and a free America's Most Wanted Criminals List Search.

Descriptions of Free Searches performed with every National Background Check:

Free National Sex Offender Registry Check – This is a full national sex offender search covering all 50 US States.  If a 
match is made the sex offender record results will usually show photos of the person including mug shots.  This search also 
includes the following:

National Sex Offender Registry provided by the United States Department of Justice (DOJ)•
High-Risk Sex Offenders - All 50 US States•
Sexual Predators – Sexually violent offenders and persons obtaining or seeking non-consensual sexual contact with 
another person and/or has committed sex crimes, such as rape or child sexual abuse.

•

Dept of Corrections - Convicted Sex Offenders who were under the supervision of the DOC•
Crimes Against Children - Kidnapping, felonious restraint and/or child abuse.  People convicted of, found guilty of or 
plead guilty to committing or attempting to commit sexual offenses and other crimes against children.

•

Free US Most Wanted Criminal List Search – Includes separate searches from the FBI, Department of Public Safety, 
America’s most wanted criminals and US Marshals most wanted criminals list.

REMEMBER:  Detailed information regarding what each statewide search within the national background check covers is 
listed on our individual state pages.  You can visit any of our state pages to learn what you should expect from your search 
results from each state.  The national criminal background check performs individual state criminal background checks all at 
once in one comprehensive national criminal search.

Instant National Criminal Background Check includes all of the following 46 states
Alabama National Criminal Background Check 
Alaska National Criminal Background Check 
Arizona National Criminal Background Check 
Arkansas National Criminal Background Check 
*California National Criminal Background Check 
Colorado National Criminal Background Check 
Connecticut National Criminal Background Check 
Florida National Criminal Background Check 
Georgia National Criminal Background Check 
Hawaii National Criminal Background Check 
Idaho National Criminal Background Check 
Illinois National Criminal Background Check 
Indiana National Criminal Background Check 
Iowa National Criminal Background Check 
Kansas National Criminal Background Check 
Kentucky National Criminal Background Check 
Louisiana National Criminal Background Check 
Maine National Criminal Background Check 
Maryland National Criminal Background Check 
Michigan National Criminal Background Check 
Minnesota National Criminal Background Check 
Mississippi National Criminal Background Check 

Nebraska National Criminal Background Check 
Nevada National Criminal Background Check 
New Hampshire National Criminal Background Check 
New Jersey National Criminal Background Check 
New Mexico National Criminal Background Check 
New York National Criminal Background Check 
North Carolina National Criminal Background Check 
North Dakota National Criminal Background Check 
Ohio National Criminal Background Check 
Oklahoma National Criminal Background Check 
Oregon National Criminal Background Check 
Pennsylvania National Criminal Background Check 
Rhode Island National Criminal Background Check 
South Carolina National Criminal Background Check 
Tennessee National Criminal Background Check 
Texas National Criminal Background Check 
Utah National Criminal Background Check 
Vermont National Criminal Background Check 
Virginia National Criminal Background Check 
Washington National Criminal Background Check 
Washington DC National Criminal Background Check 

Instant Background Checks 
 State Background Checks
 3-State Background Check
 National Background Check
Non-Instant Background Check
 County Background Checks
 Federal Search
 SSN Validation &
  Address History Trace
 Driving Records
 Professional Verifications

 Employment Screening 
Credit Checks for Landlords & 
Renters - Tenant Screening

 Click map 
to view 
larger map

 

      
PayPal       

 

 
 

  
 

  
 

Public Records Blog 
blog.CriminalBackgroundRecords.com

Page 1 of 2 National Criminal Background Check - Instant Nationwide Crim... 1/31/2012

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 285 of 377



THIS IS ONLY A SAMPLE CRIMINAL BACKGROUND RECORD SEARCH
 

 

Print   

 PERSON INVESTIGATED    

 Name:  John Doe Order Number:  3215892  
 Date of Birth: 02/04/1965 Order Date:  1/31/2012  
 SS#: 012-34-5678 Member: 8285995  
 States Searched: Texas & California (multi-county)    
      

 
Please verify that the following record(s) are indeed the person you are investigating. If the details in the record(s) below 
do not match those of the subject you are investigating, then there are No Records Found based on the search criteria you 
submitted. 

 

OFFENSE PROFILE FOR JOHN DOE 
DOB: 02/04/1965 
Alias: Johnny Dough, Jon Doe 
SSN: N/A
Address: 715 Main Street
City: Dallas
State: TX
Zip Code: 75252

Gender: Male
Race: White
Eyes: Brown
Hair: Black
Height: 5 ft. 9 in.
Weight: 213 lbs.

OFFENSE INFORMATION 
Status: INMATE
Search Type:   Texas Dallas Criminal
County: Dallas
StateID: 23990004
Financial: Unknown

Admitted Date: 12/01/1996
Prison/Probation Agency:  
Code:  
Phone:  

TX DEPT CORRECTION 
N/A 
N/A 

Parole Date: 12/01/2005
Prison Release Date: Unknown

COURT RECORD 
PLACE & TYPE OF OFFENSE CUSTODY & CASE INFORMATION 

Offense: MALICIOUS CAUSE BOD INJ
Offense Type: FELONY
Offense Date: 08/20/1996
Offense Code: 18.2-51
Disposition: CONVICTION
Disposition Date: 09/25/1996
Disposition Code: 310
Court: 195TH DISTRICT COURT DALLAS
Statute: 14-111
County: Dallas

Case Number:  F-99546097
Count Number: N/A 
Sentenced Date: 09/25/1996 
Incarceration:  State Prison Facility
Probation:  N/A
Earliest Release Date:  12/01/2004
Max Release Date: 12/01/2010
Release Date:  N/A
Suspended: N/A
Special Provisions: Unknown

JAIL / PROBATION DATA ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Admission Date: 12/01/1996

Agency:
Dallas Police Department

Agency Code: TX227015G
Arrest Date: 08/20/1996
Arrest Agency: Dallas PD
Plead: Offender Plead Guilty
Time: N/A

Status: ACTIVE
Verdict Code: GU 
Verdict Description: GUILTY
Court Fine: $0
Community Service: N/A

 

Please send questions or inquires regarding this order (including order number) to: 
service@CriminalBackgroundRecords.com

CriminalBackgroundRecords.com is committed to using the best available methods of retrieving criminal records data in 
every region of the country. Since these records are stored and accessed differently (depending on the location being 
searched), the pricing and depth of information available from the courts varies by state and county. The records obtained 
from this search must be used in compliance with the Fair Credit Reporting Act, and any other laws governing the use of 
public records. Final verification of the applicant's identity and proper use of these reports is the responsibility of you, the 
customer. 

Although every effort is made to assure the accuracy of the information contained in these reports, the Customer holds 
harmless CriminalBackgroundRecords.com and its holding company Information Enterprises, incorporated. In addition, by 
using this site and becoming a customer of this site, you understand and accept that the information we gather is derived 
primarily from public records, which may not be one hundred percent accurate or complete.

Users should not assume that this data provides a complete or accurate history of any person's criminal history. Users 
should consult state and federal laws before using this information in making decisions on hiring or firing of employees. 
CriminalBackgroundRecords.com and Information Enterprises, Inc. can not offer legal advice on how to use the 

Page 1 of 2 Instant National Criminal Search, Search Background Checks, C... 1/31/2012

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 286 of 377



information contained in these criminal background reports, and are not responsible for any action taken by the customer 
based on this information.

CriminalBackgroundRecords.com and Information Enterprises Inc. assume no liability for any claims for damages arising 
from the use of this data beyond the actual cost of the searches performed.

- End of Record - 

THIS IS ONLY A SAMPLE CRIMINAL BACKGROUND RECORD SEARCH

Page 2 of 2 Instant National Criminal Search, Search Background Checks, C... 1/31/2012

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 287 of 377



 
 

Introduced by:  Mayor Cleworth 
Introduced:  February 27, 2012 

 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 4513 

 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CITY SCHEDULE OF FEES AND 

CHARGES FOR SERVICE, ADJUSTING COSTS TO CONDUCT 
CRIMINAL HISTORY CHECKS FOR CHAUFFEURS APPLICANTS 

 
WHEREAS, the City Schedule of Fees and Charges for Services was enacted in 

2008 by Ordinance No. 5744 and has been amended by resolution on several 
occasions since that time; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council passed Ordinance No. 5875, which amended the 
process for criminal history reports for Chauffeur License applicants and allowed for an 
increase to pay the cost of the new process, while eliminating other costs to applicants.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council to approve the 
attached amended version of the Schedule of Fees and Charges for Services to amend 
the fee for a Chauffeur’s License.   

 
PASSED and APPROVED this ____ day of February 2012. 

 
 

___________________________ 
JERRY CLEWORTH, MAYOR 

 
AYES:    
NAYS:   
ABSENT:   
APPROVED:   
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________ 
JANEY HOVENDEN, CMC, City Clerk PAUL J. EWERS, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 288 of 377



Category Code Sec. Topic Current Fee Resolution 
4513

Unit

City of Fairbanks Fee Schedule
Resolution 4513 - Effective February 2012

14-123 $       100.00 One time Application; non-refundable
14-129 $       400.00 Two Year License
14-131 $  10,000.00 Bond

 $  20,000.00 Out of state not registered in at least two other 
states

$       100.00 One time Application; non refundable; ea pers
$       200.00 2 year license - each person

14-294 Plumber/mechanical Contractor
$       200.00 Non refundable application & Exam Fee
$       200.00 3 year license - each applicant
$       100.00 Non refundable application & Exam Fee
$       200.00 3 year license - each applicant

14-433  $       250.00 2 Year license - entity
14-361 Commercial Refuse  $    2,000.00 2 Year license - entity

 $       100.00 One time Application; non refundable, entity & 
each employee or agent

 $    2,000.00 Two year license
86-51 $       100.00 One time Application; non refundable

 $       400.00 Two year license fee - entity
$       200.00 Per Car lic; 2 years ($100 vehicle transfer fee)

86-55  $       100.00 Transfer fee - car or entity
$         25.00 $         75.00 Each One time App Fee; non refundable
$       100.00 2 year license - each driver

Master Operator's License

Private Detective

Occupational 

14-256

14-502

86-80

Commercial Transport Vehicle Company

Journeymen 

Gaming Establishment

Massage Practitioner

Master Plumber

Chauffeurs License

4 U:\RESOLUTIONS\RESOLUTIONS ‐ 2012\Resolution 4513 ‐ Proposed Chauffeur Fees.xlsx
AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 289 of 377



 

Introduced By: Mayor Cleworth  
Date:  February 27, 2012 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 4514 

 
A RESOLUTION URGING THE ALASKA LEGISLATURE TO REFRAIN 

FROM ENACTING ANY LEGISLATION THAT WOULD INCREASE 
THE STATE’S PENSION LIABILITY 

 
WHEREAS, the State enacted the Public Employee Retirement System (“PERS”) and 

Teacher’s Retirement Systems (“TRS”) in the 1960’s; starting in 1986, the state has reduced 
benefits several times with the most recent changes in 2005: 

 
- Closing the defined benefits (“DB”) programs of PERS and TRS and providing a 

defined contribution (“DC”) program to public employees. 
 
- Capping the PERS rate paid by municipalities to 22% and subsidizing the difference 

between that rate and the actuarial rate with a statewide appropriation so local governments do 
not have to share the full burden with local taxpayers. 

 
- Capping the TRS contribution to 12.56% and again subsidizing the difference between 

that rate and the actuarial rate with a statewide appropriation so local school districts do not 
have to take money out of the classroom in order to pay their rising TRS costs. 

 
WHEREAS, the current statewide liability for PERS & TRS now totals $11 billion; the 

most recent state appropriation for these programs was $470 million and rising in the coming 
year to $610.5 million; and 

 
WHEREAS, there are pending proposals to amend the pension plans that will increase 

benefits, which would limit the state’s ability to properly fund other deserving programs and 
increase the portion paid by municipal employers. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Fairbanks urges the 

legislature to refrain from making any amendments to the PERS and TRS system that would 
increase the costs and liability of the programs. 
 

PASSED and APPROVED this ___ Day of ____________ 2012.   
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Jerry Cleworth, Mayor 
AYES:    
NAYS:    
ABSENT:  
ADOPTION:  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________________  _____________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, City Clerk CMC   Paul Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 290 of 377



Sponsored by:  Mayor Cleworth 
Finance Committee Review: February 21, 2012  

Introduced: February 27, 2012 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 5876 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTERS 14, 46, AND 78 TO REPEAL, 
AMEND, AND CLARIFY CERTAIN OFFENSES  

 
 WHEREAS, certain offenses under the Fairbanks Code that are currently misdemeanors 
could be handled more efficiently and without any detriment to public safety as violations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, certain offenses under the Code are duplicative of offenses found in State 
criminal and traffic statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there are certain ordinances currently in the Fairbanks Code that have 
become outdated or have been held unconstitutional since the time they were first enacted, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:   
 
SECTION 1.  That Fairbanks General Code Chapter 14, is amended as follows [new text is in 
bold/underlined font; deleted text is in strike out font]:     
 

 
Sec. 14-171. Illegal Presence 
 
  (a)  A person may not knowingly enter or remain on premises: 
 

(1) In which alcoholic beverages are manufactured, sold, offered for 
sale, possessed for sale or barter, trafficked in or bartered in 
violation of: 

 
 a. AS 04.11.010; 
 b. AS 04.16.090; or  

c. A municipal ordinance adopted under AS 04.21.010(a) or 
(b); or 

 
(2) Licensed under state law during hours in which the person’s 

presence on the premises is a violation of a city ordinance adopted 
under authority of AS 04.16.010(d) providing for hours of closure 
that are outside the hours of closure prescribed by AS 
04.16.010(c).   

 
  (b) A person who violates this section is guilty of a violationmisdemeanor, 
punishable by a maximum fine of $500as provided in section 1-15.   This 
offense is amenable to disposition without court appearance upon payment 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 291 of 377



Ordinance No. 5876 
Page 2 

and forfeiture of a bail amount of $150, plus the surcharge imposed by the 
State of Alaska under AS 12.55.039.   
 
Sec. 14-177. Indecent exposure in premises holding any alcohol license.   
 
REPEALED.   

 
SECTION 2.  That Fairbanks General Code Chapter 46, is amended as follows [new text is in 
bold/underlined font; deleted text is in strike out font]:     

 
Sec. 46-4. Penalties. 

*  *  *  *  * 
 

  (c) A person convicted of any of the following offenses shall be punished by a 
fine only of not more than $450.00: 
 

(1) Section 46-43 – Soliciting business on residential premises Section 
46-41(a) – Disorderly Conduct.   

 
 (2) Section 46-42(a) – Disturbing the peace 
 

(3) Section 46-162 – Littering.   
 
 (4) Section 46-137 – Illegal handbilling.   
  
  (d) A person convicted of any of the following offenses shall be punished by a 
fine of not more than $500.00 or by imprisonment for not more than five days or 
both such fine and imprisonment: 
 
 (1) Section 46-41(b) – Disorderly conduct 
 
 (2) Section 46-42(b) – Disturbing the peace 
  

(3) Section 46-80 – Drinking in public 
 
 (3) Section 46-257 – Urinating in public 
 
Sec. 46-41. Disorderly Conduct. 
 
   (a) A person commits the offense of disorderly conduct if he: No person may  
 

(a)  Rrecklessly blocks the entry or exit of any public or private 
building or 

 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 292 of 377



Ordinance No. 5876 
Page 3 

(b)  After being informed by a police officer that his conduct is in 
violation of subsection (a), refuses to clear the entry or exit of 
the public or private building.   

 
  (b) No person may recklessly insult, taunt or challenge another person in a 
manner likely to offend or provoke a violent response. 
 
Sec. 46-42. Disturbing the peace. 
 
  (a) A person commits the offense of disturbing the peace if he:   
 

(1) In a public place, repeatedly or continuously shouts, blows a horn, 
plays a musical or recording or amplifying instrument, or 
otherwise generates loud sound or noise with the intent to disturb 
or in reckless disregard of the peace and privacy of others.   

 
(2) In a private place, engages in the conduct described in subsection 

(a)(1) of this section, with the same intent or reckless disregard, 
after having been informed by another that the conduct is 
disturbing the peace and privacy of others not in the same place.   

 
(3) Between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., operates or uses a 

pile driver, pneumatic hammer, bulldozer, road grader, loader, 
power shovel, derrick, backhoe, power saw, manual hammer, 
motorcycle, snow machine or other instrument, appliance or 
vehicle which generates loud sounds or noise, after having been 
informed by another that such operation or use is disturbing the 
peace and privacy of others.   

 
(4) Keeps any dog or other animal which is allowed to engage in 

frequent or prolonged barking or other loud noise-producing 
activity, after having been informed by another that such frequent 
or prolonged barking or noise-producing activity is disturbing the 
peace and privacy of others.   

 
(5) Repeatedly or continuously sounds any horn or other sound-

producing warning device on a motor vehicle when such repeated 
or continued sounding is not necessary to warn of any danger.   

 
  (b) After being informed by a police officer that his conduct is in violation of 
subsection (a), refuses to abate the prohibited activity.   
 
  (c) As used in subsections (a)(1) and (a)(2) of this section: 
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 293 of 377



Ordinance No. 5876 
Page 4 

(1) “Loud sound” in a public place means sound which is loud enough 
to inhibit the ability of a not unduly sensitive person in the same 
place to speak freely without leaving the same place. 

 
(2) “Loud sound” in a private place means sound which is loud 

enough to awaken a not unduly sensitive person in another private 
place.   

 
(3) The inside and outside of buildings and separate residences within 

an apartment house, and separate rooms within a hotel are different 
places.   

 
  (d) As used in subsections (a)(3) and (a)(4) of this section, loud sound or loud 
noise is sound or noise which would awaken, or cause difficulty in sleeping for, 
the average, not unduly sensitive individual attempting to sleep in any house, 
apartment, hotel, motel or other residence in the vicinity of the sound or noise-
producing activity.   
 
  (e) The following sound or noise is not prohibited by this section: 
 

(1) Noise of safety signals, warning devices and emergency pressure 
relief valves when used for their warning of emergency purposes. 

 
(2) Noise produced by any authorized emergency vehicle when 

responding to an emergency call or when otherwise authorized by 
law or ordinance to activate its sirens or other warning devises.   

 
(3) Noises necessarily produced in the course of work required to 

protect persons or property from an imminent peril.  
 
(4) Noise produced by any activity for which a permit has been issued 

pursuant to subsection (ef) of this section.   
 

  (f) Applications for a permit for relief from the application of this section to any 
activity on the basis of undue hardship may be made to the mayor or his duly 
authorized representative.  A non-refundable application fee and a permit fee, as 
set forth in the city’s schedule of fees and charges for services, will be charged for 
the city’s processing of an application.  Any permit granted by the mayor under 
this subsection shall contain all conditions upon which such permit has been 
granted and shall specify a reasonable time that the permit shall be effective.  The 
mayor or duly authorized representative may grant the relief as applied for if he 
finds that:   
 

(1) Additional time is necessary for the applicant to alter or modify his 
activity or operation to comply with this section; or 

 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 294 of 377



Ordinance No. 5876 
Page 5 

(2) The activity, operation or noise source will be of a temporary 
duration, and cannot be done in a manner that would comply with 
other paragraphs of this section; and  

 
(3) No other reasonable alternative is available to the applicant.   

 
However, the mayor may prescribe any conditions or requirements he deems 
necessary to minimize adverse effects upon the community or the surrounding 
neighborhood.   
 
Sec. 46-43. Soliciting business on residential premises. 
 
REPEALED.   
 
Sec. 46-76. Sale or transfer of prohibited weapons to minors. 
 
REPEALED.   
 
Sec. 46-78. Issuing a bad check. 
 
REPEALED.   
  
Sec. 46-83. Administrative surcharge, minor misconduct.   
 
REPEALED.   
 
Sec. 46-186. Use of electronically amplified sound systems in motor vehicles.   
 
Is hereby moved from Chapter 46 to Chapter 78, renumbered as FGC Sec. 78-652 
and amended as follows:   
 

Sec. 78-652. Use of electronically amplified sound systems in motor 
vehicles.   

 
  (a) No person operating or in control of a parked or moving motor 
vehicle shall operate or permit the operation of an electronically amplified 
sound system in or on the motor vehicle so as to produce sound that is 
clearly audible more than 50 feet from the motor vehicle.   
 
  (b) Any person violating the provisions of this section shall pay a fine 
civil penalty of $50.00 for the first violation or date of violation, and 
$300.00 for the second and any subsequent violations within six months 
of the first violation, and $1,000.00 for the third violation within one year 
of the first violation.   
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 295 of 377



Ordinance No. 5876 
Page 6 

  (c) Any authorized police officer may issue a citation for any violation 
under this section, except they may arrest for instances when the alleged 
violator refuses to provide the officer with such person’s name and 
address and any proof as may be reasonably available to the alleged 
violator.   
 
(d) The following sound or noise is not prohibited by this section: 
 

(1) Noise of safety signals, warning devices and emergency 
pressure relief valves when used for their warning of 
emergency purposes. 

 
(2) Noise produced by any authorized emergency vehicle when 

responding to an emergency call or when otherwise 
authorized by law or ordinance to activate its sirens or other 
warning devices.   

 
(3) Noises produced by vehicles for the purpose of advertising 

commercial or political messages.   
 

Sec. 46-257. Urinating in public.   
 
  (a)  A person commits the offense of urinating in public if he urinates on any 
portion of a public place not existing for the purpose of receiving urine.   
 
  (b)  A person convicted under this section shall be punished by a fine only if 
the person has not been previously convicted under this section or has only 
been convicted once.  The fine for a first or second offense is $150.00.   
 
  (c)  A person convicted more than two times under this section shall be 
punished by a fine of not more than $500, by imprisonment of not more than 
five days, or both such fine and imprisonment.   
 
Sec. 46-258. Loitering for prostitution.   
 
REPEALED. 
 
Sec. 46-292. Failing to maintain firearm transaction record.   
 
REPEALED. 
  
Sec. 46-294. Possession of a dangerous weapon on school grounds.   
 
REPEALED. 
 
Sec. 46-327. Making a false report of need for emergency assistance.   

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 296 of 377



Ordinance No. 5876 
Page 7 

 
REPEALED. 
 

SECTION 3.  That Fairbanks General Code Chapter 78, is amended as follows [new text is in 
bold/underlined font; deleted text is in strike out font]:     
 

Sec. 78-611. Reckless driving.   
 
REPEALED. 
 
Sec. 78-613. Failure to yield to police officer.   
 
REPEALED. 
  
Sec. 78-614, 615, 616. Notice of accident.   
 
REPEALED. 
  
Sec. 78-893. Unlawful use of license.   
 
REPEALED. 
 
 

SECTION 4.  That the effective date of this Ordinance shall be the ____ day of March 2012. 
 
 
             
       Jerry Cleworth, City Mayor 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

       ___________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk   Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 297 of 377



   Introduced by: Mayor Cleworth 
Finance Committee Review: February 21, 2012   

        Date:  February 27, 2012  
 
 

ORDINANCE NO.   5877  
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A LAND EXCHANGE BETWEEN THE 
GREATER FAIRBANKS COMMUNITY HOSPITAL FOUNDATION AND 

THE CITY OF FAIRBAKS TO FACILITATE VACATION OF 11TH 
AVENUE AND TO PROVIDE PARKING ADJACENT TO FIRE STATION 

HEADQUARTERS 
 
 WHEREAS, the City owns the land underlying the streets within the original 
Townsite of Fairbanks by virtue of Deed from the Townsite Trustee; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Greater Fairbanks Community Hospital Foundation, Inc. 
(GFCHF), seeks to vacate a portion of a City-owned right of way, comprising that 
portion of 11th Avenue lying east of the Noble Street, for the purpose of increased traffic 
safety and parking expansion as shown on “Exhibit A” (attached); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City seeks to acquire additional land adjacent to the Fire Station 
Headquarters at 1101 Cushman to satisfy a parking shortfall; and  
 
 WHEREAS, GFCHF owns vacant Lot 6A, Block 122, adjoining the Fire Station 
Headquarters; and  
 
 WHEREAS, GFCHF and the City have agreed to a like-kind exchange of lands, 
in which the vacated portion of 11th Avenue will be exchange for a portion of Lot 6A, to 
be created by subdivision, as shown on “Exhibit B” (attached); and  
 

WHEREAS, the Administration has determined that the exchange parcels each 
have a value of approximately $60,000; and  
  

WHEREAS, each party will bear its own costs of survey and administration as 
may be required to effect this exchange; and 
 
 WHEREAS, real estate exchange is unique by nature and not subject to public 
offering; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Fairbanks General Code Section 70-45 Property Exchanges 
authorizes the Council to approve such exchanges when in the judgment of the Council 
it is advantageous for the City to do so, 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
  

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 298 of 377



Ordinance No. 5877 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 SECTION 1.  That a Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement 
approved by the City Attorney shall be used to set forth the particulars in 
this real estate exchange. 
 
 SECTION 2.  That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute said 
Agreement and all such other legal documents as may be necessary to 
complete the transaction on behalf of the City. 
 
 SECTION 3.  That conveyance of the property shall be subject to a 
thirty-day permissive referendum period as required under Fairbanks 
General Code of Ordinances Section 70-42, and the City Charter.  
 
 SECTION 4.  That the effective date of this Ordinance shall be the 
12th Day of March, 2012. 
 
 
 

                                                                              
                         JERRY CLEWORTH, Mayor 
 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:   
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
ADOPTED:   
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                              
JANEY HOVENDEN, CMC, City Clerk   PAUL EWERS, City Attorney  

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 299 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 300 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 301 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 302 of 377



 

1 9-1-1 Call Taking Services Agreement 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL  

AGREEMENT FOR 9-1-1 CALL TAKING SERVICES 

 

1.0 PURPOSE:  This Intergovernmental Agreement serves to establish the 9-1-1 Call Taking 
agreement between City of Fairbanks (City) operating the Fairbanks Emergency 
Communications Center (FECC), the Fairbanks North Star Borough (Borough) and the 
Department of Public Safety and contains the following objectives: 
 

1.1 To promote the health, safety and general welfare of the citizens and visitors 
throughout the Fairbanks North Star Borough.  To that end, the parties wish to 
continually improve procedural efficiency and technical capabilities of emergency 
call taking, emergency call processing, and all emergency response 
communications. 
 

1.2 To save lives by improved call processing time which reduces response times to 
emergency incidents. 

 
1.3 To improve safety of emergency responders. 
 
1.4 To effectively receive calls for routine and emergency assistance, based on 

structured call intake protocols, and coordinate response resources to those calls 
for service based on the needs of the caller and the direction of field response 
agencies. 

 
1.5 To provide all agencies with a single contact point for the notification of 

emergencies and receipt of emergency assistance requests, and for the control of 
coordinated dispatch for law enforcement, fire and EMS. 

 
1.6 To bring about increased efficiencies and coordination of communications and 

emergency response services, including the use of the National Incident 
Management System.  These communications improvements are intended to 
impact emergency response for all services provided by law enforcement agencies, 
fire departments, ambulance services, and other organizations that respond to 
emergency situations of imminent danger to life or property. 

 
1.7 To provide the public and field response agencies with highly trained and certified 

9-1-1 call-takers who strive to provide the best service possible to all parties 
involved. 
 

1.8 To set the goals of 1) meeting NFPA’s 1221 standards; and 2) meeting National 
Emergency Dispatch standards for Emergency Medical Dispatch (EMD), 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 303 of 377



 

2 9-1-1 Call Taking Services Agreement 

 

Emergency Fire Dispatch (EFD) and Emergency Police Dispatch (EPD) 
Accreditation. 
 

1.9 To plan for establish an alternate center to serve as a backup, overflow and training 
site, and as a secondary location where emergency dispatchers will function in the 
event that they need to evacuate the primary 9-1-1 Center. 
 

2.0 DEFINITIONS:   As used in this Agreement the following words and phrases shall have the 
meanings indicated unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 

 
2.1 “9-1-1 Services” shall mean services and equipment to answer 9-1-1 calls on a 24 

hours per day basis.   
  
2.2 “Agency” – Individual police, fire and/or EMS provider. 

 
2.3  “Call-Taker” – means a person employed in a primary or secondary answering 

point whose duties include the initial answering of 911 or enhanced 911 calls and 
routing the calls to the agency or dispatch center responsible for dispatching 
appropriate emergency services and a person in a primary or secondary answering 
point whose duties include receiving a 911 or enhanced 911 call either directly or 
routed from another answering point and dispatching appropriate emergency 
services in response to the call; the term “Call-Taker” is synonymous with the term 
“dispatcher” in that it is inclusive of the functions of both answering the 911 or 

enhanced 911 calls and dispatching emergency services in response to the calls. 
  

2.4 “Dispatch Center Time Study” - the identification of specific tasks and job elements 
performed by Call-Takers/dispatchers and allocating the time needed to perform 
those tasks to the individual agencies that receive services from the FECC. 
 

2.5 “Dispatching” – The act of alerting, directing and documenting the response of 
public safety units to the desired location.  
  

2.6  “Enhanced 911 equipment” means the equipment dedicated to the operation of, or 
use in, the establishment, operation, or maintenance of an enhanced 911 system, 
including customer premises equipment, automatic number identification or 
automatic location identification controllers and display units, printers, cathode ray 
tubes, recorders, software, and other essential communication equipment required 
by the system or as may be defined by state law. 
 

2.7 "Enhanced 911 system" means a telephone system consisting of network, 
database, and enhanced 911 equipment that uses the single three digit number, 
911, for reporting a police, fire, medical, or other emergency situation, and that 
enables the users of a public telephone system to reach a public safety answering 
point to report emergencies by dialing 911; an enhanced 911 system includes the 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 304 of 377



 

3 9-1-1 Call Taking Services Agreement 

 

personnel required to acquire, install, operate, and maintain the system and its 
facilities and to dispatch the calls generated by the system. 
 

2.8 “Jurisdiction” – Local or State government with the authority to provide public safety 
services. 
 

2.9  “NENA” – National Emergency Number Association.  
 

2.10 “Other Services” shall mean services related to emergency service or jurisdictional 
communications provision, such as administrative call-taking. 
 

2.11 “Participants” shall mean the parties to this Agreement. 
 

2.12 "Public safety answering point" (PSAP) means a 24-hour local jurisdiction 
communications facility that receives 911 service calls and directly dispatches 
emergency response services or that relays calls to the appropriate public or private 
safety agency. 
 

2.12.1 Primary PSAP – Refers to the initial PSAP to which 9-1-1 calls are routed 
to for initial screening. 
 

2.12.2 Secondary PSAP – Refers to the PSAP to which calls are transferred after 
initial screening by the Primary PSAP. 

 
2.13 “Significant workload change” - an annual increase or decrease in call volume 

greater than eight hundred Fire/EMS or one thousand law enforcement calls for 
service; an annual increase or decrease of greater than 10 percent of 911 calls 
received by the FECC; or the addition of a task(s) requiring the need for additional 
staffing as determined by the Dispatch Center Manager. 
 

2.14 “User Group”– Individual police, fire and/or EMS provider that uses the services of 
the FECC. 
 

2.15 "Wireless telephone" means a telephone that is not a wireline telephone and 
includes cellular and mobile telephones. 
 

2.16 "Wireline telephone" means a telephone that uses a local exchange access line. 
 

3.0 FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT: 
 

3.1 The City will provide a PSAP (FECC) that includes facilities sufficient to maintain 
the E911 equipment and provide call-taking services. 
 

3.2 The City will provide the labor to staff the FECC. 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 305 of 377



 

4 9-1-1 Call Taking Services Agreement 

 

 
3.3 The City recognizes the long-term need to establish a suitable location to function 

as a backup facility to the primary facility for 9-1-1 Call Taking.  The City agrees to 
continue to explore options for locating a back up location or to develop agreements 
with other jurisdictions/entities for this purpose. 

 
3.4 The Borough provides the enhanced 9-1-1 Equipment, networking components, 

telephone lines, workstation hardware, software, annual maintenance and GIS 
support for the 9-1-1 system. 

 
3.4.1 Long Distance or other charges that are incurred at FECC unrelated to the 

delivery of the 9-1-1 service shall be paid by the City. 
 

3.5 The City will provide the Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) system, emergency 
dispatch protocols related to police, fire and medical call taking. 
 

3.6 The City agrees to allow the Borough access to the FECC for the purpose of 
trouble-shooting, maintaining, and replacing E9-1-1 equipment. The Borough will 
attempt to provide reasonable notice to the City when such access is required. 
 

3.7 The City agrees to assist the Borough with periodic testing of the E9-1-1 system. 
This includes receiving test E9-1-1 calls from wireless, VoIP, and wireline service 
providers.  
  

3.8 The City agrees to provide a representative from the FECC to serve on the E9-1-1 
system replacement project team.  

 
4.0 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS:  The City will meet the following standards: 

 
4.1 Call taking standards as set forth in NENA Call Answering Standard / Model 

Recommendation (NENA Document 56-005), with specific attention given to the 
following sections: 
 

4.1.1 Standard for answering 911 calls:  Ninety percent (90%) of all 911 calls 
arriving at the PSAP shall be answered within ten (10) seconds during the 
busy hour (the hour of the day with the greatest call volume).  Ninety-five 
percent (95%) of all 911 calls should be answered within twenty (20) 
seconds. 
 

4.1.2 Abandoned call / disconnects:  The Call-Taker will attempt to call back 
when a 911 call is routed to the PSAP and the call disconnects before the 
Call-Taker can determine if assistance is needed.  The Call-Taker will call 
the number back once to make the determination.  If the phone is busy or 
there is no answer, additional attempts to contact the caller will not be 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 306 of 377



 

5 9-1-1 Call Taking Services Agreement 

 

made by the Call-Taker.  If the callback attempt goes to voice mail, no 
message will be left. 

 
4.1.3 Silent Calls.  In compliance with Public Law 101-336, also known as the 

Americans with Disabilities Act, all silent calls will be interrogated with a 
TTY/TDD to determine if the caller is attempting to report an emergency 
using a special communications device for hearing impaired individuals. 

 
4.2 9-1-1 Calls requiring transfer to a Secondary PSAP. 

 
4.2.1 Ninety-five (95) percent of calls requiring transfer to a Secondary PSAP 

shall be transferred within thirty (30) seconds. 
 

4.2.2 One Hundred (100) percent of calls requiring transfer to a Secondary 
PSAP shall be transferred within sixty (60) seconds. 

   

4.2.3 When transferring to another PSAP, the Call Taker shall remain on the line 
until the Call-Taker at the secondary PSAP answers the call.  Should the 
call fail to transfer or be answered, the Call Taker will retain control and 
handle the call. The PSAP responsible for dispatch of the appropriate 
resources will then be contacted and given the call information in any 
manner that is reasonable.  This includes contact via telephone, radio, 
radio intercom or any other means that are reasonable. 

 
4.3 Wireless Calls. Call taking standards as set forth in NENA Guidelines for Minimum 

Response to Wireless 9-1-1 Calls (NENA Document 56-001). 
 

4.4 Call processing and dispatch. 
 

4.4.1 Ninety-five percent of emergency call processing and dispatching shall be 
completed within 60 seconds, and 99 percent of call processing and 
dispatching shall be completed within 90 seconds (in accordance with 
NFPA 1221 – Standard for the Installation, Maintenance, and Use of 
Emergency Services Communication Systems) 
 

4.5 The City shall create an event in the Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) system for 
every 9-1-1 call, even those that do not require an emergency services response.  
  

4.5.1 For a single incident which generates multiple 9-1-1 calls, a single event 
shall be recorded in the CAD system. 
 

4.5.2 An event shall be created within the CAD system to log attempts to call 
back abandoned calls. 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 307 of 377



 

6 9-1-1 Call Taking Services Agreement 

 

 
5.0 ACCESS TO RECORDS:  All records kept by the City in support of this contract shall be 

the property of the City, but these records shall be made available to the Borough upon 
reasonable notice and at reasonable times and places.  This power to review written 
records continues for six (6) years after the termination of this contract, whether the parties 
terminate the contract or it ends by its own terms.  Electronic audio records will be 
preserved for three (3) years. 
 

6.0 TRAINING – The City agrees to train staff members in the following manner. 
 

6.1 All City call takers will be trained and certified in the use of the following Priority 
Dispatch protocols:  Emergency Fire Dispatch (EFD), Emergency Medical Dispatch 
(EMD) and Emergency Police Dispatch (EPD) within one (1) year of beginning 
employment. 
 

6.2 The City will ensure that staff members receive Continuing Dispatch Education 
(CDE) sufficient to recertify through the National Academies of Emergency Dispatch 
(NAED) biannually on the protocols listed in section 5.1 of this agreement.   

 
6.3 The City will ensure that staff members receive approved required National Incident 

Management System (NIMS) training. for the following courses: 
  
6.3.1 IS-100:  Introduction to Incident Command System 
  
6.3.2 IS-200:  ICS for Single Resources and Initial Action Incidents 
  
6.3.3 IS-700:  An Introduction to National Incident Management System (NIMS) 
  
6.3.4 IS-800:  An Introduction to National Response Framework 
 
 

7.0 E9-1-1 WORKING GROUP: The City agrees to provide a representative from the FECC to 
the Fairbanks North Star Borough E9-1-1 Advisory Committee. 
  

8.0 FAIRBANKS EMEGERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER MANAGER:  The Borough 
agrees that the FECC will be managed, operated and supervised by a Center Manager, 
who is a City of Fairbanks employee subject to the City’s personnel policies and other 

employee regulations.   
 

8.1 Responsibility and Authority of the Center Manager: 
 

8.1.1 The Center Manager shall be the administrative head of the FECC and will 
be responsible for handling administration and personnel matters within 
the framework of the City of Fairbanks regulations and personnel policies. 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 308 of 377



 

7 9-1-1 Call Taking Services Agreement 

 

 
8.1.2 A copy of the budget as recommended by the Mayor will be provided to 

participants no later than November 1 October 31 of each year.  The 
finalized budget as approved by City Council will be provided to 
participants no later than January December 31 of each year.  The City will 
publish the budget on the City of Fairbanks website each year. 

 
8.1.3 The Center Manager will be responsible for managing the Center within 

the approved annual budget. 
 

8.1.4 The Center Manager will work closely with the Borough’s Emergency 

Operations Director (or designee) regarding equipment, training, and other 
issues for which 9-1-1 funds can be utilized to maintain the best available 
technology and training. 

 
8.1.5 The Center Manager will be responsible for all activities of the 9-1-1 

Center, including but not limited to oversight of call-taking, dispatching, 
records (custodian), recording, staffing, training and security. 

 
8.1.6 The Center Manager shall establish and utilize performance standards for 

employees.  The Center Manager shall actively and continually consider 
and evaluate all means and opportunities toward the enhancement of 
operational effectiveness of 9-1-1 call-taking for the benefit of the public 
and emergency response agencies.  

 
8.1.7 The Center Manager shall review and evaluate requests from the User 

Groups for changes to service levels, performance standards, and / or 
operational procedures.  For any requests that will generate a potential 
cost for change, the Center Manager will prepare a proposal to include, at 
a minimum, implementation costs, benefits and liabilities, and will provide 
recommendations of whether to incorporate the requested changes.  Such 
reports and recommendations will be forwarded to the User Groups and 
the agency requesting the change for final decision on implementation.  

 
8.1.8 The Center Manager participates in the User Group meetings.  Should it 

be necessary for the Center Manager to miss a meeting, he/she will have 
a designee present. 
 

8.1.9 The Center Manager will develop appropriate long-range plans, including 
strategic capital improvements, staffing, technology, and other matters.  A 
comprehensive long-range plan will be developed and updated yearly.  
This plan will be presented to the User Groups on a yearly basis at a date 
and time agreed to by the User Group. 

 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 309 of 377



 

8 9-1-1 Call Taking Services Agreement 

 

9.0 CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVES -- NOTICES 
 
A. The Borough's representative shall be the Emergency Operations Director. 
 
B. The City’s representative shall be the FECC Manager. 
 
C. Any notice required under this agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally 
delivered, mailed, or faxed, and shall be addressed to the respective contract 
representative at the address shown below.  Either party may change its contract 
representative or its address for notices by written notice to the other. 
 
 
BOROUGH:  Emergency Operations Director 
    Fairbanks North Star Borough 
    P.O. Box 71267 
    Fairbanks, AK 99707 
    Tel: 459-1481    Fax: 459-1119 
 
CONTRACTOR:  Manager, Fairbanks Emergency Communications Center 
   City of Fairbanks 
    911 Cushman Street 
    Fairbanks, AK 99701 
    Tel: 450-6507   Fax:  452-1588 
 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY: Commander, “D” Detachment 
   Alaska State Troopers 
   1979 Peger Road 
   Fairbanks, AK 99709 
   Tel: (907) 451-5100 
 
 

10.0 DISPATCH CENTER TIME STUDY:  The participants agree to have a Dispatch Center 
Time Study of FECC completed within year two (2) of this agreement.  The cost of the time 
study shall be allocated to the User Group in accordance with the allocation schedule in 
Exhibit B.  
 

11.0 ADMISSION OF NEW JURISDICTIONS:  Additional jurisdictions may become participants 
by written addendum to this Agreement, with the approval of the City and the Borough, with 
terms and conditions as agreed upon. 
  

11.1 A new time study will be performed within one year of the addition an agency or 
jurisdiction, when the addition of the agency or jurisdiction results in a significant 
workload change of the FECC. 
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 310 of 377



 

9 9-1-1 Call Taking Services Agreement 

 

11.2 The cost of the time study will not be funded by existing jurisdiction(s) receiving 
services from the FECC. 
  

11.3 The vendor selected shall be familiar with public safety operations and shall employ 
a similar methodology to previously completed time studies. 
 

11.4 A variance in the time study methodology, as used in Exhibit A, requires the 
approval of all jurisdictions that fund fifteen percent or more of the cost of FECC. 

 
12.0 DURATION OF AGREEMENT – WITHDRAWAL:  The initial duration of this Agreement 

shall be for a period of five (5) years beginning on July 1, 2012 and continuing through 
June 30, 2017, and thereafter shall be automatically extended for consecutive two (2) year 
periods unless terminated by the parties.   
  

12.013.0 WITHDRAWAL:  In the event that any party desires to withdraw from the 
Agreement, said party must give at least twelve (12) months advance written notice to the 
other parties, and the withdrawal shall take effect only as of the beginning of the 
succeeding fiscal year of the Borough, unless otherwise agreed between the parties. 
 

13.014.0 CONTRACT COMPLIANCE: The participants will meet quarterly to review 
reports related to performance standards. 
 

13.114.1 If the City fails to meet the performance requirements set forth in Section 
4.0 of this agreement, it shall provide the Borough with a written improvement plan 
upon request describing how it intends to comply during the next reporting period. 
 

13.214.2 The City will provide no later than March 1, January 15th, an annual report 
to the Borough. The annual report will discuss the following: activities performed 
under this agreement during the previous calendar year with a detailed description 
of the City’s success with achieving the performance standards described in 
Section 4.0; a summary of issues related to the performance and operation of 
Borough-owned call answering equipment and software; a summary of issues 
related to E9-1-1 data including street addressing, geo-spatial data and error 
reporting. 
  

13.314.3 The City will report to the Borough by July 1, 2013, on the status of its 
plans to develop the alternate center described in Section 1.9. 
 

14.015.0 COMPENSATION:  The Borough will compensate the City for the services 
provided under this agreement as stated on the attached cost allocation table, Attachment 
“A.” 

 
14.115.1 The Borough agrees that the City may use an indirect rate of eleven 

percent of direct costs, when calculating the total cost to operate the FECC. 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 311 of 377



 

10 9-1-1 Call Taking Services Agreement 

 

 
14.215.2 On July 1st, the Borough agrees to adjust the annual level of 

compensation to the City for services performed under this agreement by the 
annual percent change published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price 
Index, Anchorage Area in effect as of December 31st of the previous year.  
 

14.315.3 In the event of a significant workload change to the services provided in 
this agreement, either party may request to renegotiate the level of compensation 
due. The requesting party shall provide notice to the other on or before December 
1st.  
 

14.415.4 The City will annually provide to the Borough, a cost allocation table 
(superceding version of Attachment “A”) showing each agency’s share of the overall 
cost to operate FECC. 

 
14.515.5 The parties acknowledge and agree that this agreement is funded solely 

with E911 surcharge revenue, the use of which is subject to limitations in state 
law.  The surcharge revenue may not be used for any capital or operational costs 
for emergency responses that occur after the call is dispatched to the emergency 
responder. The surcharge revenue may not be used for constructing buildings, 
leasing buildings, maintaining buildings, or renovating buildings, except for the 
modification of an existing building to the extent that is necessary to maintain the 
security and environmental integrity of the public safety answering point and 
equipment rooms. The surcharge revenue may be used for the following costs to 
the extent the costs are directly attributable to the establishment, maintenance, 
and operation of an enhanced 911 system:  
 
14.5.115.5.1 the acquisition, implementation, and maintenance of public safety 

answering point equipment and 911 service features; 
 

14.5.215.5.2 the acquisition, installation, and maintenance of other equipment, 
including call answering equipment, call transfer equipment, automatic 
number identification controllers and displays, automatic location 
identification controllers and displays, station instruments, 911 
telecommunications systems, teleprinters, logging recorders, instant 
playback recorders, telephone devices for the deaf, public safety 
answering point backup power systems, consoles, automatic call 
distributors, and hardware and software interfaces for computer-aided 
dispatch systems;  
 

14.5.315.5.3 the salaries and associated expenses for 911 call takers for that 
portion of time spent taking and transferring 911 calls; 
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 312 of 377



 

11 9-1-1 Call Taking Services Agreement 

 

14.5.415.5.4 training costs for public safety answering point call takers in the 
proper methods and techniques used in taking and transferring 911 calls; 
 

14.5.515.5.5 expenses required to develop and maintain all information 
necessary to properly inform call takers as to location address, type of 
emergency, and other information directly relevant to the 911 call-taking 
and transferring function, including automatic location identification and 
automatic number identification databases. 

 
14.5.615.5.6 any other use or purpose allowed by state law.  

 
15.016.0 BILLING:  Billing for 9-1-1 Call Taking services will be executed once yearly for 

the period covering July 1 through June 30 of the following year, to be paid within 60 days 
of billing. 
 

16.017.0 INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS: Subject to a specific appropriation 
by the City Council for this purpose, the City agrees to indemnify and defend the Borough 
against any claim arising from any wrongful act or negligence of the City.  The City has no 
duty to defend or indemnify the Borough against any claim or action alleging, arising from, 
or based on a wrongful or negligent act by the Borough.  The duty of the City to indemnify 
and defend the Borough extends to: 

 1. claims for death, or for damage to persons or property, 
 
 2. claims for economic loss, and  
 
 3. claims for costs expenses, and attorney's fees. 
 

The parties to this agreement recognize and agree that the City has no appropriation 
currently available to it to indemnify the Borough under this provision and that enactment of 
an appropriation in the future to fund a payment under this provision remains in the sole 
discretion of the City Council and the City Council’s failure to make such an appropriation 
creates no further liability or obligation of the City. 

Subject to a specific appropriation by the Assembly for this purpose, the Borough agrees to 
indemnify the City against any claim arising from any wrongful act or negligence of the 
Borough.  The Borough has no duty to defend or indemnify the City against any claim or 
action alleging any wrongful or negligent act by the City.  The duty of the Borough to 
indemnify and defend the City extends to: 
 

1. claims for death, or for damage to persons or property 
 
2. claims for economic loss and 
 
3. claims for cost expenses, and attorney’s fees. 

 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 313 of 377



 

12 9-1-1 Call Taking Services Agreement 

 

The parties to this agreement recognize and agree that the Borough has no appropriation 
currently available to it to indemnify the City under this provision and that enactment of an 
appropriation in the future to fund a payment under this provision remains in the sole 
discretion of the Assembly and the Assembly’s failure to make such an appropriation 

creates no further liability or obligation of the Borough. 

The obligation to indemnify for acts occurring during the term of this contract shall be 
continuing in nature and extend beyond the term of this agreement. The doctrine of 
equitable tolling extends the time within which an action for breach of this provision may be 
filed. 

Nothing in this agreement shall be construed as a waiver of immunity granted to the parties 
under law. 

17.018.0 SEVERABILITY:  Should any part of the Agreement be determined by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or against public policy, said offending section 
shall be void and of no effect, and shall not render any other section herein, nor this 
Agreement as a whole, invalid.  Those rights and obligations under this Agreement, which 
by their nature should survive, shall remain in effect after termination, suspension or 
expiration hereof. 

 
18.019.0 EXECUTION:  This Agreement or amendments hereto, shall be executed on 

behalf of each participating jurisdiction by its duly authorized representative and pursuant 
to an appropriate motion, resolution or ordinance of each participating jurisdiction.  This 
Agreement or any amendment thereto, shall be deemed adopted upon the date of 
execution by the last so authorized representative. 

 
19.020.0 SIGNATURES:  Each party to this agreement shall sign a signature page to 

constitute valid execution. 
 

20.021.0 ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This document encompasses the entire Agreement of 
the parties.  No understanding or amendment, addendum, or addition to this Agreement 
shall be effective unless made in writing and signed by all members. 

 

 

Fairbanks North Star Borough   City of Fairbanks 

              
Luke Hopkins, Mayor     Jerry Cleworth, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
              
Mona Lisa Drexler, Borough Clerk   Janey Hovenden, City Clerk 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 314 of 377



 

13 9-1-1 Call Taking Services Agreement 

 

 
 
 

Alaska State Troopers 
 
_____________________________ 
Burke Barrick, Commander, “D” Detachment 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 315 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 316 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 317 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 318 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 319 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 320 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 321 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 322 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 323 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 324 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 325 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 326 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 327 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 328 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 329 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 330 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 331 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 332 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 333 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 334 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 335 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 336 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 337 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 338 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 339 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 340 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 341 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 342 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 343 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 344 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 345 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 346 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 347 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 348 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 349 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 350 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 351 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 352 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 353 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 354 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 355 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 356 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 357 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 358 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 359 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 360 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 361 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 362 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 363 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 364 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 365 of 377



 

Fairbanks North Star Borough / City of Fairbanks 
CHENA RIVERFRONT COMMISSION 

MINUTES 
December 5, 2011 

 
A regular meeting of the Fairbanks North Star Borough/City of Fairbanks CHENA RIVERFRONT 
COMMISSION was held in the Chizmar Room, 809 Pioneer Road, Fairbanks, Alaska.  The 
meeting was called to order at 11:31 a.m. by Anna Plager, Chair. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 PRESENT: Anna Plager, Chair 

 Annette Freiburger  
 Kelley Hegarty Lammers  
 Bob Henszey  
 Lee Wood 
 Buki Wright 
  

 ABSENT: Karen Lavery 
  Cameron Leonard  
  Timothy Mullins 
  Michelle Roberts, Vice Chair 
  Matt Wilken 
 
 ALSO PRESENT Jackson Fox, City of Fbks 

Donna Gardino, FMATS 
Lara Medinger, TVWA 
Mark Mussman, FNSB Planner 
Steve Taylor, FNSB Parks & Recreation 
David van den Berg, Downtown Association 
Bobette McKirgan, Recording Clerk 
 
David Haydon, Downtown Association 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – The agenda was approved without objection after a motion by 

Freiburger, seconded by Henszey. 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (November 7, 2011) – The minutes were approved without 

objection after a motion by Hegarty Lammers, seconded by Wright. 
 
4. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE COMMISSION – Plager noted the format change to the 

CRFC minutes with the addition of action items.   
 
  Plager reported that she sent Mayor Hopkins draft of an appreciation letter to the military 

for their efforts on the August Chena River tour.  Plager said she and the mayor also 
discussed the vacancy left by Sgt. Major Mullins’ and the importance of military input; 
noting there is no rush to fill the vacancy.    

 
 Plager discussed meetings with the city and borough mayors and reported they are 

onboard regarding the Green Triangle project.  Plager extended an invitation for the new  
 
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 366 of 377



Chena Riverfront Commission Minutes -2- December 5, 2011 

 FNSB Parks & Recreation Director, Michael Bork, to meet informally to gain an overview of 
the board and its mission.   

 
 Action:  Taylor will speak with Bork to set a date for a meeting.     
 
 Plager said she spoke with Rep. Guttenberg about a new bill proposed in legislative sub-

committee and suggested there may be an opportunity to have more influence over the 
railroad’s decisions if the bill passes; and for the commission to have  review and approval 
status of the railroad’s budget.  Plager cited CRFC interest because of development on the 
north side of the river and the future of bike/pedestrian paths.   

 
 Gardino explained that the job of updating the state rail plan is the responsibility of DOT, 

noting that federal grant opportunities are being missed due to lack of an updated plan.  
Gardino reported that DOT&PF hired Joe Buck to update the rail plan.  She explained that 
a state rail plan identifies public needs and provides an opportunity to influence the 
priorities of the railroad.   

  
 Wright questioned whether introduction of the bill was pending or had already been 

introduced.  Plager replied that there is committee work being done on a draft bill; however 
noted the bill has a number and she would inquire and advise whether it had actually been 
introduced.       

 
 Action:  Plager will meet with Rep. Guttenberg or whoever is involved with the committee 

to get the bill passed to give the legislature more influence over the railroad’s priorities.   
 
 Plager reported she met with Mayor Cleworth to discuss the Gateway and Complete 

Streets projects.  She stated Mayor Cleworth did not have strong opinions on the Gateway 
Project.  Plager wanted to make sure to keep Mayor Cleworth informed and noted his 
interest in the north side bike path.  Plager said Mayor Cleworth requested the CRFC 
provide resolutions to the City Council.  Plager suggested the commission decide which 
communications should be in resolution form and, when an item may be difficult to work 
through the political arm of our entities, communication could be made by letter or memo. 

  
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS - None 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS - None 
   
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 A.  Update of Vision Fairbanks  
  
 David van den Berg, Downtown Association, reported on the status of the Vision 

Fairbanks Downtown Plan.  van den Berg discussed setbacks encountered, including two 
way traffic circulation, and advised that the implementation phase was considered over.  
He provided copies of the plan and a 6/24/11 newspaper article to commissioners.  Plager 
thanked van den Berg for keeping the river in mind during planning.  Henszey said that 
nothing was done as a result of implementing the plan and it was not dead and van den 
Berg agreed.   

 
 Hegarty Lammers thought this was one of the best plans and encouraged it be thought of 

differently.  Hegarty Lammers said the public made strong statements that were captured 
in the plan and suggested another phase; noting high public participation and adding that 
she would hate to see this plan shelved.  van den Berg agreed that the concepts are  

 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 367 of 377



Chena Riverfront Commission Minutes -3- December 5, 2011 

 good.  Hegarty Lammers added that planning in Fairbanks always begins gently in order 
to gain a lot of support.  van den Berg reiterated that the commission had a plan update 
and he wanted to submit some strong food for thought.  Hegarty Lammers noted updates 
are done every five years and the last one was adopted 1 ½ years ago.  Wright offered the 
disclaimer that he is a DTA board member and asked what avenues are open to bring this 
about.  van den Berg replied that commissions like the CRFC take the lead; attempting 
structural change, infrastructure, bike paths, and suggested the way to finance the 
implementation plan was to create an urban renewal  district that employs tax increment 
financing.  He said that a downtown improvement district is where you begin to create more 
buy-in from property owners.       

       
 Wood asked whether small, commercial areas (like Wien & 2nd Avenue and 1st & Lathrop) 

were shelved and van den Berg referred her question to Mussman.  Mussman explained 
zoning plans and how they might affect downtown development.  He said that if zoning 
action were required to accommodate development, Community Planning would consider 
compatibility issues.  Mussman felt that some neighborhood plans and promotion of light 
commercial developments in close proximity to downtown could support the overall Vision 
Fairbanks.  Mussman said when you get people closer to downtown, they will utilize 
downtown.    

 
 Freiburger noted that change comes slowly to Fairbanks and the significant show of 

community support should be an encouragement.  She cited new buildings and capital 
investment downtown and congratulated van den Berg on receiving funds to continue the 
Community Service Patrol.   

 
 van den Berg made the commission aware that Phase III of the bike path was passed in 

April.  Wright recalled that John Binkley, on behalf of the railroad, supported the north side 
bike path.  Plager noted that Binkley supported north side bike path development, just not 
on railroad property.     

 
 Action:  van den Berg will provide the city ordinance and the document Vision Relies on 

Chena to the FNSB Platting secretary for distribution to commissioners.   
 

 B.  Letter of comment to the mayors re: temporary dog park plans  
 
 Wood provided an update on the temporary dog park and a draft resolution.  She said the 

intent was to request that the commission be kept in the loop about development and given 
a heads up when projects are proposed.  Wood said the draft addressed the evaluation 
and review of public and private projects and, basically, how we handle the river.  Hegarty 
Lammers complimented Wood on her effort.  Wood said this is a valuable piece of 
property, noting that removal of the snow dump would create great concern by the City.              

  
 A motion was made by Hegarty Lammers, seconded by Freiburger, to adopt the resolution.   
    
 Hegarty Lammers suggested edits to the document and Wright thought deletion of the 

verbiage ‘but also to the residents in the immediate area’ would avoid exclusivity.  Wood 
said she agreed with this reasoning and would make changes.  Henszey also suggested 
edits.   

 
 Discussion of retaining the snow dump was made.  Hegarty Lammers suggested this 

resolution would be of interest to the city mayor.  Plager agreed and said this would be a 
good way to remind the city council of the commission’s existence and asked whether it 
should be sent as a resolution.  Wright said the point of a resolution is usually expressed  

 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 368 of 377



Chena Riverfront Commission Minutes -4- December 5, 2011 

 in the ‘therefore be it resolved’ language.  Wright noted two points were being made: 1) we 
believe this property should remain in public use and not commercial or residential 
development and 2) if ever owners do anything with the property, we (CRFC) would like to 
have a say.  Wright suggested these points be expressed in the resolution.      

 Plager thought it would be good to steer clear of using certain phrases, i.e. ‘greenbelts’, in 
order to avoid sounding project oriented.  Plager thanked Wood for her work.     

 
 Action:  Wood will provide an updated resolution.   
  

 A motion was made by Hegarty Lammers, seconded by Henszey, to postpone adoption of 
the resolution.   

 
 C.  Previous river studies & development planning – No update; deferred until future notice. 

 
 D.  Borough Reports – Taylor reported that the Borough was set to take title to eleven 

properties in the Chena Flats greenbelt and issue conservation easements back to the 
Land Trust.  Taylor explained that the Land Trust is a private, non-profit that purchases 
land for conservation values and can hold conservation easements.  In this process, this 
was a Chena Ridge neighborhood effort to preserve Chena Marina wetlands.  Wright 
asked who the land trust was and Taylor replied it was a private, non-profit.   

  
Mussman said Ice Alaska is moving to a 25-acre area on the east side of Noyes Slough 
and had proposed park improvements over the next ten years, with possible southern 
expansion to the river.  Mussman reported that Ice Alaska has a rezone request scheduled 
before the Planning Commission on December 13th and a site plan should be brought to 
the Assembly in February 2012.  Plager voiced concerns about encroachment on the river, 
construction of hotels and the movement of park structures close to the river.  Mussman 
offered to provide more information to commissioners available in his office.  Freiburger 
noted that available resources would determine a timeline for Ice Park development.  
Plager wanted to discuss this topic at the February CRFC meeting; however because of 
conflicting schedules, it was agreed to hold a special committee meeting on December 
15th.   

 
 Action:  The Platting secretary will provide a draft agenda for the December 15th meeting to 

the Chair.   
  
 A motion made by Wright, seconded by Hegarty Lammers, to extend the meeting was 

approved without objection.   
  

 E.  City Reports  
 
 Gardino discussed the Complete Streets project, stating that Mayor Cleworth had 

assembled an advisory group to review the project as it develops.  Gardino said she is on 
the advisory group and works for the policy committee.  A traffic analysis of the study area 
from Cowles to Noble concluded that Cushman and Barnette can function as two-lane 
roadways, based on future traffic demands.  Gardino explained that Crandall Arambula will 
come up with ideas providing for all modes of transportation and street-scaping ideas.  
Gardino said the next meeting is December 13th.  Gardino noted there is four to six million 
in state funding for the project and Mayor Cleworth wants it done by the summer of 2012.  
Plager noted the CRFC should be following this design and questioned funding sources.   

 
 Gardino discussed plans for the Helmericks Avenue Extension & Bentley Trust Road 

Upgrade and said that public comments were due December 16th.  Freiburger cited safety  
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 369 of 377



Chena Riverfront Commission Minutes -5- December 5, 2011 

 issues on Illinois Street after a recent snowfall.  Hegarty Lammers questioned plans for 
traffic circles and public art and Gardino replied that now is the time to be considering 
those items.   Gardino said comments about bike and pedestrian planning are still being 
taken.   

  
 Gardino discussed the Graehl Park project and suggested this as a topic for the 

commission’s February agenda.  Hegarty Lammers stressed that bicycle access should 
be addressed in the Wendell Avenue Bridge project.   

 
 Action:  Gardino will invite Sarah Schacher from DOT to attend the next CRFC meeting 

and update commissioners on the Wendell Avenue Bridge project.  Gardino will present 
recommendations for the non-motorized plan.    

 
 Fox reported that the City will soon start design on a preventative maintenance project for 

the Graehl Subdivision including repaving and installation of storm drains, which should be 
constructed by next summer.  Gardino noted this is a state funded project.   

 
 F.  Committee Reports - None 
 
8.  COMMISSIONERS' COMMENTS - Deferred to next meeting due to time constraints. 
 
9.   STAFF and LIAISON COMMENTS  
 
 Medinger reported that TVWA is putting together a riparian management brochure aimed 

toward the public and landowners that should be produced within the next month.   
 
 Medinger advised commissioners that her term with TVWA is ending and Plager voiced 

her appreciation for Medinger’s efforts and follow-through.   
  
 Action:  Medinger will forward the brochure to commissioners prior to her departure from 

TVWA and Henszey may be able to provide an update at the next CRFC meeting.   
 
 Medinger said TVWA is holding a membership drive and cited the value of demonstrating 

support for the TVWA.   
    
10. AGENDA SETTING FOR February 6, 2012 COMMISSION MEETING 
 

A. Update of non-motorized plan – Gardino 
B. Wendell Avenue Bridge Project – Schacher  
C. Riparian Brochure – Henszey 
D. Update of draft resolution – Wood 
E. Update on Ice Alaska properties 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 A motion was made by Hegarty Lammers, seconded by Freiburger, to adjourn the meeting.  
The meeting adjourned at 1:21pm 

 
/b 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 370 of 377



 

Fairbanks North Star Borough / City of Fairbanks 
CHENA RIVERFRONT COMMISSION 

DESIGN COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
December 15, 2011 

 

 
A special meeting of the Fairbanks North Star Borough/City of Fairbanks Chena Riverfront 
Commission Design Committee was held in the Salcha Conference Room, 3rd Floor, Borough 
Administrative Center, 809 Pioneer Road, Fairbanks, AK.  The meeting was called to order at 
11:30am by Kelley Hegarty Lammers, Chair.   
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 PRESENT: Annette Freiburger  

 Kelley Hegarty Lammers, Chair  
 Bob Henszey  
 Anna Plager  
 Lee Wood 
   

 ABSENT: Karen Lavery 
  Cameron Leonard  
  Timothy Mullins 
  Michelle Roberts, Vice Chair 
  Matt Wilken  
  Buki Wright 
 
 ALSO PRESENT Hank Bartos, Ice Alaska 

Dick Brickley, Ice Alaska 
Mark Mussman, FNSB Planner 

 
2. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 A.  Ice Alaska Development Plan 

 
Hegarty Lammers noted that the purpose of this meeting was to gain a better 
understanding of a rezone on the Chena riverfront, in the corridor of special interest to the 
commission.  Hegarty Lammers stated the purpose of the Chena Riverfront Commission 
(CRFC) is to return the Chena River to its status as the Crown Jewel of Fairbanks, so the 
CRFC watches very closely when anything happens on the river.   
 
Hegarty Lammers remarked on the rezone discussed at the December 5, 2011 meeting 
regarding what she believed to be one of the greatest opportunities on the riverfront.  She 
provided background on charter member George Horner, who initially had concerns about 
development of his property and later became an advocate for retention of the commission. 
Hegarty Lammers said there was delight that Ice Alaska made a deal for the Horner 
property and there would be a home for this event, which is so important to the identity of 
the community. 
 
Dick Brickley and Hank Bartos of Ice Alaska welcomed the opportunity to present their 
vision that encompasses an area from the University Bridge to the Wendell Street Bridge.   
 
Mussman said the Planning Commission recommended approval of the modified request to 
the Assembly, and the ordinance would be introduced at the January 12th meeting.   

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 371 of 377



CRFC Design Committee Meeting Minutes  - 2 -    December 15, 2011 
 

 
Mussman said the committee has a work session planned January 19th and a public 
hearing January 26th, noting it would be good to have the rezone approved prior to the 
upcoming Ice Alaska competition.   
 
Mussman presented a PowerPoint and explained rezone plans.  He noted the area had 
historically been used for mineral extraction that was essentially exhausted, making the land 
available for purchase.  Mussman showed a site plan including amenities and parking, and 
provided plans reflecting future development, noting the attractiveness of the finished 
product.   
 
Henszey commented that the 50’ waterway protection overlay from the meander line 
becomes less meaningful with the increased width of the waterway.  Discussion of the use 
of the phrases high water line versus property line and meander line was made.  Plager 
asked Mussman to provide additional information about the meander line and Henszey 
suggested this be discussed in front of the full committee. 
   
Mussman said the 50’ waterway protection included in the rezone is intended to protect the 
shoreline and cover Chena River and Noyes Slough frontage.  Mussman also discussed 
conditional use approval.  Plager added that the state has setbacks along waterways.   
Henszey suggested it would be good to provide information about waterway set-backs at 
the full committee meeting.  Mussman noted that the borough and Ice Alaska did a good job 
working through the process; citing special limitations and permitted uses.  He said zoning 
for General Commercial Use is limited to the Ice Park and all of the features outlined in the 
site plan.   
 
Hegarty Lammers stated that the commission’s job as long-term planners was to stay with 
the word ‘if’ as opposed to ‘when’ to keep an eye on what could happen in the future, and to 
ensure that all possibilities are addressed.  Wood asked about plans for the area should the 
Ice Park be dissolved.  Hegarty Lammers suggested that presenters be allowed to finish.   
 
Dick Brickley, Ice Alaska, thanked the commission for the opportunity to provide 
information.  Brickley discussed the reasons for the rezone and the opportunity provided by 
George Horner’s offer to sell property; and explained provisions of the lease/purchase.  
Brickley stated the objective is to enhance and promote international friendships through 
cultural and artistic exchange and this plan is a key element; citing the promotion and 
encouragement of winter tourism and other economic opportunities.  Brickley added that if 
the Ice Park were dissolved, all debts would be paid and assets sold to another non-profit.  
He discussed the contributions of Mr. Horner to development of the Ice Park.  Brickley said 
that the 2012 theme is ‘Dreams Do Come True’, and presented a slide show and detailed 
explanation of proposed Ice Park plans, which included ice-fishing.  Freiburger added it 
would be great to obtain fish from the hatchery.  Wood suggested consideration of a dog 
training center and Bartos replied that there are ongoing talks with mushers for dog-sled 
rides along the slough.  Brickley said this space makes the vision of the river being 
developed as the cornerstone of the community a possibility.  Brickley estimated property 
taxes payable to the Fairbanks North Star Borough would exceed $500,000 annually.  
Bartos noted that Alaska Magazine recently listed Ice Alaska as the number one ‘cool thing’ 
to do in Alaska.  Bartos added that Ice Alaska enhances the fortunes of Alaska and the 
Fairbanks community.  Plager thanked Brickley and Bartos for their presentation.  Plager  
remarked on the commission’s support of Ice Alaska and concerns raised over expansion 
and construction on two parcels near the river.  Plager stated the commission would like to 
fully support the Ice Alaska program.   
 
Freiburger asked about plans for river access and Bartos replied there had been 
discussion of establishing a marina and access from the river, at some point in the future.   

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 372 of 377



CRFC Design Committee Meeting Minutes  - 3 -    December 15, 2011 
 

 
Hegarty Lammers said that the CRFC wanted to testify in support of Ice Alaska in front of 
the FNSB Assembly and wanted to stay focused on the rezone during the meeting.  
Hegarty Lammers noted the importance of river access and that the commission would like 
to see river access plans added to the conceptual narrative.  She believed it necessary to 
edit the concept in order to gain full support from the commission.  Plager asked Freiburger 
to define her idea of river access.  Freiburger gave examples of dog sled and snow 
machine access.  
 
Mussman said he realized this was an ambitious plan, citing special limitations for General 
Commercial Use zoning and that the Ice Park would be a theme park with year round 
operation.  Mussman noted it would not be a material change to the plan to specifically 
address river access or other items.  He noted creation of a marina would likely involve 
federal agencies.  Hegarty Lammers stated this is a conceptual plan and it would be okay 
to include items that need other permitting.  Hegarty Lammers discussed the importance of 
adding specifics to the plan.   
 
Wood commented that her primary concern is what happens if Ice Alaska ‘folds’ and what 
the borough responsibilities are.  Hegarty Lammers agreed and remarked that this topic 
had been addressed during the discussion, noting there were limitations included in the 
zoning.  Mussman said that changes could be requested to the special limitations through 
the process and gave example of an outlet mall.  He noted opening day of the 2012 
competition is less than two months away and, as the Ice Park becomes established, 
everyone associates the land with that usage, making change more difficult.  Mussman 
explained the reason for choosing General Commercial zoning was to allow for more than 
one principal building on a site and, in the event additional countries wanted to be 
represented, additional lots would not have to be created.   
 
Plager said she was worried about the future of Ice Alaska if financial success was not 
realized and it was sold to another company.  Brickley said this was why they were very 
clear in crafting language and it was stipulated in the deed that the property could only be 
used for the George Horner Ice Park, even if ownership changed.  Hegarty Lammers         
noted and Henszey agreed that deeds can be changed and parcels sold.  She said the 
mission of the CRFC was to plan for the future and any inevitability, asking which words 
could be included in an ordinance to ensure the limitations remained in place.  Bartos 
replied covenants were included and would convey with the land.  Mussman said that 
although the narrative and site plan are general, he felt comfortable with the special 
limitations.  He said there would not be typical, commercial development on the property 
and if that were attempted, it would take a process that would be difficult and had to be 
brought before the Assembly.  Henszey questioned whether there was a commercial 
easement comparable to a Land Trust conservation easement.  Bartos replied he did not 
know the answer and Mussman asked about whether those (easements) could be 
maneuvered out of.  Henszey said multiple challenges to conservation easements had been 
unsuccessful.  Hegarty Lammers wanted to know whether the Ice Park easement could be 
considered a covenant.  Mussman replied the general use is limited to the Ice Park and 
could not be reversed by unwilling parties.  Mussman gave the location of language in the  
ordinance.  He also noted that although not everything was included in the narrative, the 
concept was.  Discussion of how to change the narrative was made.  Hegarty Lammers 
said she would like to see the arbiter defined within the language.  Plager gave examples of 
the DNR process for changes and the level of review required, noting the Ice Park would be 
on private property.  Hegarty Lammers said governance would be through the ordinance as  
it relates to Title 18, stating her agreement with including different levels of review within the 
plan and narrative.  Hegarty Lammers said without this language included, a new owner 
could change the plan and Mussman stated not without what would essentially be a rezone 
process.  Brickley said that Ice Alaska is comprised of volunteers and a revenue source is  

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 373 of 377



CRFC Design Committee Meeting Minutes  - 4 -    December 15, 2011 
 

 
necessary to be successful to carry it forward.  Brickley said any language can be included 
that better protects the Chena River and Noyes Slough and Bartos added it was in Ice 
Alaska’s interest to have the river protected.  Plager defined protection as being careful of 
development that may harm vegetation and cause riverbank erosion.  Mussman said 
permitted use in this zone is preservation of natural vegetation.  Henszey asked that 
enhancement or reestablishment be included.   
 
Hegarty Lammers voiced her concern about architecture and design guidelines that would 
be used to create structures, with regard to withstanding Alaskan weather.  Brickley replied 
that structures would be built to code requirements.  Plager voiced concerns about foot 
traffic near structures along the river causing a loss of natural protection.  Bartos said the 
bank is very high at that location and Brickley said surveys would be done to ensure 
erosion is avoided.  Wood requested the commission be given a tour of the property.  
Henszey said the tour would best be done in summer and Brickley said he would be glad 
to drive them through.  When invited to join by Ice Alaska, Hegarty Lammers said she 
would like to support Ice Alaska as liaison for the Chena Riverfront Commission by serving 
on the International Artist Village committee.   
 
Hegarty Lammers said that in listening to the commission’s comments today, it is clear that 
the commission would like to work with Ice Alaska on specific pieces and language to be 
included in the development plan and ordinance.  She summarized these items as 1) river 
access, 2) protection and maintenance of the riparian zone, 3) how to move forward, 4) the 
fifty foot set-back, and 5) building construction.  Hegarty Lammers added that the next step 
would be to decide how to move forward quickly on these items so that the Ice Alaska 
timeline for this season was not negatively impacted. 
 
Hegarty Lammers said she would like to see the phrase ‘meander line’ changed to 
‘property line’.  Avoidance of building a ‘shanty-town’ was discussed.              
 
Wood said the commissioners were surprised with this topic at the last CRFC meeting and 
she would like to have this kind of information provided sooner in order to review the 
process.  Mussman said the best thing would be for the department representative to 
contact the chairperson.   
 
Mussman noted there are two types of language in the ordinance describing the particular 
pieces of property, what they are being zoned to and the special limitations, which have 
been forwarded by the Planning Commission, as written.  He said he did not believe 
changes to the special limitations could be made unless proposed by an Assembly member.  
Plager said she would have time to work with Brickley.  Mussman said he would be out of 
the office until mid-January and set up a meeting with Plager for December 16th.        
 

3. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The meeting adjourned at 1:46pm. 
 
/b 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 374 of 377



  

Approved 2/14/12 Page 1 of 2 

 

 

PUBLIC SAFETY 

COMMISSION 

January 10, 2012 

11:30 AM 

Fairbanks Fire Department 
 

PSC Members: 

 

 

 

Peter Stern (Seat C - 2013)                                  Buzzy Chiu (Seat D - 2014) 

Frank Eagle (Seat E - 2012)                                Nate Werner (FPD Representative) 

John Eberhart (Seat A - 2014)                             Greg Taylor (FFD Representative) 

Bill Satterberg (Seat B - 2012)                                    

Meeting Minutes 

CALLED TO ORDER:  11:32 am 

ATTENDANCE: 

PSC Members:  Peter Stern, Frank Eagle, John Eberhart, Bill Satterberg, Buzzy Chiu, and Greg 

Taylor 

PSC Members Absent:  Nate Werner. 

Others in attendance:  Dave Burglin – CAO, Deputy Chief Brad Johnson and Lt. Erik Jewkes-FPD; 

Chief Warren Cummings and Lisa Howard-FFD.   

ADOPT AGENDA:  Agenda adopted without addition of Downtown Improvement District under New 

Business. 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  None 

MINUTES:     The minutes of the December 13, 2011 meeting were approved without changes. 

OLD BUSINESS: 

Reappointment of Seats A & D.  Chairman Stern thanked both members for their continued service. 

Possible Code Changes to Infractions  Discussion of committee work so far.  Intent is to delete any 

duplications.  Where possible will delete City Codes, however, some codes may have same name but 

have different wording or application.  Also discussed is need to find tracking mechanism for 

violations, especially in the case of escalating/repeat offenses.  Discussion of use of violations with a 

fine of community service for some types of incidents.  Committee working with COF CAO to draft 

an ordinance regarding changes.  Lt. Jewkes also report working on ordinance for billing false 911 

calls for repeat offenders (often mechanical malfunctions but just as often human error – cleaning 

crews not properly disarming alarms, etc.) 

     

Role of the Public Safety Commission  The motion that was made by Bill Satterberg, seconded by 

Frank Eagle to sunset the City of Fairbanks Public Safety Commission and was tabled at the last 

meeting, pending feedback from the Mayor and City Council with regards to their vision of the 

commission, remains tabled.  John Eberhart reported a worksession with the commission and the 

council has been scheduled for Feb 17
th

.  After discussion, Mr. Stern is to request the meeting be 

rescheduled to March 19
th

 to allow all PSC members to be present.  

  

NEW BUSINESS: 

Downtown Improvement District  Council Member Vivian Stiver introduced a resolution to form an 

Ad Hoc committee for the purpose of exploring the development of a Downtown Improvement 

District.  The idea would be to develop a mechanism to fund the CSP and Clean Team, which directly 

benefit downtown businesses and residents.  Mayor Cleworth is looking for volunteers to serve. 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 375 of 377



City of Fairbanks Public Safety Commission  January 10, 2012 

Approved 2/14/12  Page 2 of 2 

 

REPORTS:   

FFD Report 

Chief Cumming reported that the City Council approved accepting an Assistance to Firefighters 

Grant (AFG) of $140K for the purpose of replacing outdated Personal Protective Equipment.  He also 

reported that the new 2012 SAFER grant guidelines are out.  This grant funds a significant amount of 

the cost of hiring additional personnel.   Frank Eagle, seconded by Buzzy Chiu, made a motion in 

support of FFD applying for this grant, which passed unanimously.  Chief Cummings then reviewed a 

draft of the 2011 statistics and reported that for the year actual fires had increased. Some of the 

information may change slightly as adjustments are made during year end data validation, especially 

in the area of MA ambulance responses. 

 

FPD Report 

Deputy Chief Johnson distributed the FPD monthly statistical report.  He also noted that Robert 

Hall would soon be returning from deployment and would resume as the PSC representative for FPD. 

 

FECC  Report    

None – Director Johnson was absent. 

 

CLOSING COMMENTS: 

Bill Satterberg requested to be excused from the next meeting. 

 

NEXT MEETING:   February 14, 2012 – Council Chambers hosted by FECC 

MEETING ADJOURNED at 12:48 PM 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Lisa Howard, FFD 

AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 376 of 377



AGENDA PACKET - February 27, 2012 Page 377 of 377


	AGENDA - February 27, 2012
	MINUTES
	Regular Meeting - November 21, 2011
	Regular Meeting - December 5, 2011

	SPECIAL ORDERS
	Board of Adjustment - Sandstrom
	FNSB-Vacation of Public Right-of-Way 

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Ordinance No. 5875

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 4513
	Resolution No. 4514
	Ordinance No. 5876
	Ordinance No. 5877

	DISCUSSION ITEMS
	FNSB Dispatch Contracts 

	COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL
	Perm Fund  - Minutes 11/2/2011 
	Chena Riverfront - Minutes 12/5/2011
	Chena Riverfront - Minutes 12/15/2011
	Public Safety - Minutes 01/10/2012
	Reappointment to Perm Fund Committee




